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D I V I S I O N  O F  C O M M U N I T Y  S E R V I C E S 
The North Dakota Department of Commerce Division of Community Services 
(DCS) was established to provide technical assistance to local governments and 
state agencies in the areas of community and rural planning and development, 
policy research and development and grant program implementation.

P R O G R A M S  I N C L U D E :
STATE ENERGY PROGRAM — 

The State Energy Program provides a range of grant resources for energy 
conservation-related opportunities, including energy education, installation 

assistance through the U.S. Department of Energy (DOE) and funds political 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT — Developing Vibrant and 
Sustainable Communities

The Community Development Block Grant Program (CDBG), provided 
through the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD), 

to moderate income individuals.

EMERGENCY SOLUTIONS AND NORTH DAKOTA HOMELESS GRANT — 
Working to End Homelessness

The Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG) is a program of the U.S. Department of 
Housing and Urban Development. 

The Emergency Solutions Grant and ND Homeless Grant (NDHG) provides 

unsheltered homeless persons, as well as those at risk of homelessness, 
and provide services to help them quickly regain stability in permanent 

of Commerce currently awards grant funds directly to emergency/homeless 
shelters and agencies throughout the state for activities like operational 

services (case management, medical, laundry, transportation, etc.), 

Information System.

It has been proposed that the ESG and NDHG programs move to the North 

C O M M U N I T Y  S E R V I C E S

F A C T S

53,193
P E O P L E 

I M P A C T E D  B Y 
C D B G  A N D 

C S B G

10,471
P E R S O N S  

S E R V E D  B Y 
H O M E L E S S 

G R A N T S

132

C D B G  A N D 
H O M E  F U N D S 

R E H A B B E D

H O M E S

42 
PROJECTS
C O M P L E T E D 

T H R O U G H  T H E 
S T A T E  E N E R G Y 

P R O G R A M



D I D  Y O U  K N O W ?
WEATHERIZATION/LIHEAP — 
Income Persons

Weatherization Program impact low-income individuals across the 
state to: 

• 
• Strengthen the health and safety of the home
• 
• Provide conservation measures 

energy-conserving measures. They are programs of the U.S. 
Department of Energy and the U.S. Department of Health and Human 

MANUFACTURED HOME INSTALLATION PROGRAM — Inspecting 

the manufactured home installation program, where all new 
manufactured homes installed for residential purposes are completed 

required on a double-wide home and one inspection on a single-

manufactured homes installed. 

COMMUNITY SERVICES BLOCK GRANT — Fighting Poverty in 
North Dakota

The Community Services Block Grant (CSBG) Program assists 
communities in implementing anti-poverty programs. The program 
administers funding from the U.S. Department of Health and Human 
Services through the state’s seven Community Action Agencies 
(CAAs), providing various services to low-income persons, including: 

• Emergency assistance
• 
• Housing counseling
• 
• Case management and outreach 
• Referral services

CARES FUNDING —
DCS received additional federal funds for the ESG and CSBG 
programs to assist with the challenges of the pandemic. CSBG 

support to the ESG grant.

For more information, contact Maria Effertz Hanson at mehanson@nd.gov

manufactured homes 
installed. 

Community Services Block 
Grant 
low-income individuals, 

people who lacked health 
insurance. 

Community Development 
Block Grant assisted 
businesses as part of 
economic development. 

have weatherized since 

homes equipped with 
energy saving measures. 



The mission of the State Energy Program is to provide leadership to 

A P P L I C A T I O N 
P R O C E S S

R E I M B U R S E M E N T

available at 

• 

• 

S T A T E  E N E R G Y  P R O G R A M

S T A T E  E N E R G Y 
P R O G R A M 

A P P L I C A T I O N S

G U I D E L I N E S
• Construction costs are ineligible.
• Sub-recipients must maintain a 

SAM registration and valid UEI 
to be eligible.

• Funds may not be used for 
product development.

• A 20% match is required. The 
match may be cash or in-kind.

• State Energy Security 
Planning

• 

• “Spotlight on Energy” 

• Energy audits

• Electric vehicle (EV) 
charging stations

• Electric vehicle (EV) 
training programs

For more information, contact Kevin Iverson at kciverson@nd.gov



M A I N  S T R E E T

ECONOMIC DIVERSIFICATION
Destination Red River - These recipients came together to create a robust 

INFILL DEVELOPMENT

AT TRAC TING AND RE TAINING WORKFORCE

M A I N  ST R E E T  N O R T H  D A KOTA 
Every community has unique opportunities and challenges. The Main Street 
Initiative gives local leaders direct access to a variety of resources, building on 

industries. 

Communities engaged in this initiative receive direct and focused assistance 

state agencies, streamlined access to resources and learning opportunities and 

future of their design.

MAIN STREET FACTS

99
M A I N  S T R E E T 
C O M M U N I T I E S

$1.1 MILLION
I N  G R A N T 
F U N D I N G 
A W A R D E D

81
COLLABORATING 

PARTNERS

$1M EDA 
GRANT

BRINGS 
ADDITIONAL 

FEDERAL FUNDS 
INCLUDING

T H E  F O U R  P I L L A R S  O F  T H E 
M A I N  ST R E E T  I N I T I AT I V E 

M A I N  ST R E E T  I N I T I AT I V E  S U C C E S S E S

BUILDING PRIDE AND PROMOTING VIBRANCY 

HEALTHY, 
VIBRANT 

COMMUNITIES

21ST 
CENTURY 

WORKFORCE

SMART,
EFFICIENT 

INFRASTRUCTURE

ECONOMIC
DIVERSIFICATION

M O R E  T H A N

UPDATED 01/06/2023



L E V E L S  O F  E N G A G E M E N T 

Main Street COMMUNITY

Main Street CHAMPION

• Sign up through the online portal
• Community Visit by MSI Team
• Share success stories

• All above requirements plus:
• Sign a Main Street Initiative proclamation
• Complete Main Street Initiative Action Plan
• Identify top 3-5 priorities, assign champions and 

establish timelines

Documents>MSI>2020>MSI Assets>Main Street Fact Sheet

M A I N  S T R E E T 
I N I T I A T I V E  H I G H L I G H T S

W H Y  B E C O M E  A  M A I N  S T R E E T 
C O M M U N I T Y ?
Joining the Main Street Initiative provides communities the resources, 

connections that empower communities to proactively plan their 
futures and build local capacity to improve quality of life for their  
current and future citizens. Plus, engaged communities receive extra 

For more information contact Tracey Miller at tracmiller@nd.gov

The 2022 Main Street ND 
Summit had 4,580 livestreams, 942 
registrations, 558 check-ins, 423 

ROI for the Partners in Planning 
(PIP) grant is 25:1 and Main Street 
Vibrancy grant is 10:1.

The Main Street Initiative connects 
4,476 community 

leaders, volunteers and advocates 
from around the region, engages 

connections.

M S I  I M P A C T

The state team has led meetings in 
32 communities over the last 12 
months.

The Main Street Initiative continues 
to expand its Partnership 

ND Council on the Arts, AARP, 
StrengthenND, ND League of Cities, 
USDA Rural Development, NDSU 
Extension and more!



North Dakota is the second-largest energy-producing state in the nation off ering 
opportunities in oil and gas, coal and alternative energy production. North 
Dakota is a proactive producer and serves as a model in fostering innovative, 
long-term strategies to meet our 
nation’s growing energy demand. 
The state strives with an “all 
of the above” approach in the 
development of its wide-ranging 
energy sector while meeting 
the need for energy security in 
an environmentally responsible 
manner. North Dakota off ers 
a comprehensive package of 
incentives to stimulate growth in 
all energy sectors and creates a 
broad-based energy strategy that 
maximizes the state’s resources.

E N E R G Y  D E V E L O P M E N T  I N C E N T I V E S

E N E R G Y  A N D  N AT U R A L  R E S O U R C E S

5 th

I N  S H A R E 
O F  W I N D 

G E N E R A T E D 
E L E C T R I C I T Y

M E G A W A T T 
H O U R S  O F 

E L E C T R I C I T Y 
G E N E R A T E D

42.2 
MILLION

I N D U S T R Y  F A C T S

K N O W N  L I G N I T E 
D E P O S I T  I N  T H E 

W O R L D

2nd 
L ARGEST

N O R T H  D A K O T A  T O T A L 
E N E R G Y  P R O D U C T I O N

ND RANKS 

3 RD

I N  N A T I O N A L 
O I L 

P R O D U C T I O N

UPDATED 05/13/2022

Financial Incentives
• North Dakota Development Fund – Gap fi nancing loan and equity program.
• Bank of North Dakota PACE Program – Interest buy down program.
• Bank of North Dakota Match Program – Loans at U.S. Treasury yield rate 

+0.25% to businesses other than retail that create new wealth, provide jobs 
and demonstrate considerable fi nancial strength.

• Clean and Sustainable Energy program – Grant and funding options for 
research, development and commercialization of large scale innovative 
energy projects administered through the ND Industrial Commission.

• Renewable Energy Program – Grant and funding options to foster the 
development of renewable energy and related industrial technologies 
within a broad range of commercial applications. Overseen by the ND 
Industrial Commission.

Property Tax Exemptions
• Up to fi ve-year property tax exemption. Additional fi ve years available 

for agricultural processors or projects located on property leased from a 
governmental entity.

• Payment in lieu of a property tax exemption, in full or part. A company may 
negotiate a fi xed or graduated rate for a period not to exceed 20 years. A 
privilege tax may be applied to coal conversion facilities.  

• Exemptions on all personal property from property taxation except that of 
certain oil and gas refi neries and utilities.

Corporate Tax Exemptions
• Five-year corporate income tax exemption for new or expanding primary 

sector business.



E N E R G Y 
H I G H L I G H T S

Sales Tax Exemptions
• Sales and use tax exemptions on manufacturing and processing equipment.
• Sales and use tax exemptions may be granted for purchasing tangible 

personal property used to construct or expand electrical generating 
facilities, gas or liquefi ed natural gas processing facilities or oil refi neries.

• Sales and use tax exemptions may be granted for purchasing tangible 
personal property used for carbon-dioxide enhanced oil or gas recovery, 
to extract or process by-products from coal gasifi cation and to produce 
coal from a new mine. 

Job Training Programs
• One-stop job training assistance – Both state and federal programs 

available for businesses.
• New Jobs Training Program – Grant program utilizing employee 

withholding tax.

S U P P O R T I N G  I N F R A S T R U C T U R E

For more information, contact Rich Garman at rgarman@nd.gov 
or Tom Oakland at thomas.oakland@nd.gov

Williston Basin crude oil 
export capacity included 
nearly 1.5 million barrels 
transported by pipeline 
per day and 800K barrels 
by rail per day, totaling 
nearly 2.3 million 
barrels per day.

Electric vehicle 
charging stations 
have doubled across 
North Dakota with plans 
for more.

32 North Dakota 
facilities process natural 
gas and have a capacity 
of over four billion cubic 
feet per day.

In 2021, North Dakota 
had over 4,000 MW 
of installed wind 
capacity, with interest 
in an additional 6,200 
MW.  Ranked 7th in 
the nation for installed 
capacity share with 
31% of total electric 
generation coming from 
wind.

N O R T H  D A K O T A  E N E R G Y  S I T E S

29,655 Miles of Pipeline
• 17 major crude oil pipelines, including 

Enbridge, Keystone, Marathon 
Petroleum and Dakota Access.

• Nine natural gas pipelines, including 
Alliance, Northern Border and WBI 
Energy.

• Four product pipelines, including 
Cenex, Kinder Morgan Cochin, 
Magellan, and NuStar Energy.

Rail Services
• Class 1 Carriers – BNSF and Canadian 

Pacifi c.
• Four regional lines.
• 38 container service/transloading 

facilities. 
• 42 loop/ladder tracks.

North Dakota Port Services Inc. 
Serviced by BNSF

• Adjacent to mainline 
switch yard.

• Daily service and 
highway access.

• Fully operational 
intermodal facility with 
LNG capacity. 

Electrical Capacity
• More than 42 million 

megawatt hours of 
electricity generated 
annually.

• More than half of state’s 
generated electricity is 
exported.



N O R T H  D A K O T A  C A R B O N
N E U T R A L I T Y  O P P O R T U N I T Y

Carbon dioxide (CO₂) capture and storage technologies have become increasingly important as global markets focus on reducing the amount 
of CO₂ that is emitted into the atmosphere. As the state with the nation’s largest dependence on out-of-state trade, a new focus on $52 trillion 
in private equity using environmental, social and governance (ESG) standards, new federal regulations and shifting consumer demand, North 
Dakota is committed to innovation in order to provide our companies optimal access to capital and natural resources. That commitment was 
solidifi ed in May 2021, when Gov. Doug Burgum announced that the state will strive to become carbon-neutral by 2030. This goal will only be 
reached through innovation, not regulation.

The recent Infl ation Reduction Act increased federal incentives to $60-$85 per ton of CO₂ for utilization or storage. Capturing CO₂ from existing 
in-state and out-of-state facilities can bring a substantial fi nancial benefi t while sustaining North Dakota agriculture and energy production.

Carbon neutrality is not only good for the environment, it is also good for business. And our state has a great story to tell.

COAL

COAL
SHALE

SHALE

SHALE

SHALE

SANDSTONE

FRESHWATER
AQUIFER

6
000’ D

EEP

Proactive actions are already underway to fulfi ll this 
commitment. For example, Project Tundra in Oliver County, 
North Dakota, aims to build the largest carbon capture, 
utilization and storage (CCUS) facility in the world. Also, 
Red Trail Energy in Richardton is studying the economic 
feasibility of integrating CCUS with ethanol production. 
Research is underway at the University of North Dakota’s 
Energy and Environmental Research Center (EERC) to bring 
this initiative to reality. 

North Dakota is uniquely positioned for this innovation 
given our geology is ideal for safe and permanent geologic 
storage of CO₂. A deep porous rock layer will hold the 
CO₂ more than a mile underground and overlying cap rock 
layers will seal the CO₂ in the storage zone. EERC estimates 
that North Dakota has capacity to sequester up to 25 billion 
tons of CO₂, over 4,400 years’ worth of North Dakota’s 
annual production!

NORTH DAKOTA’S
GEOLOGY IS  IDEAL

DEVELOPING MARKETS 
FOR CO₂

North Dakota’s older (conventional) oil fi elds:
When the market is ready, CO₂ enhanced oil recovery (EOR) 
will revitalize older fi elds that are in declining stages of 
production, producing up to 1 billion additional barrels!

North Dakota’s Bakken (unconventional) oil fi elds:
When the technology is ready, CO₂ EOR can be applied to 
declining Bakken oil wells to improve production, unlocking 
up to 7 billion additional barrels from the Bakken and Three 
Forks shale!

9/22/2022



~1 MILE DEEP ~1 MILE DEEPCAP ROCK

3 The wells pump a mixture of oil, CO₂
and water from the oil reservoir.2

1 CO₂ captured from natual or industrial
sources is injected into the oil reservoir.

4 The oil, water and CO₂
are separated.

6 Water is reinjected with the
CO₂ in alternating waves.

7 CO₂ is recycled and reinjected
to produce more oil.

5 Oil is taken to a refinery
by pipeline or rail.

CO₂ lowers the oil’s viscosity, helping
it flow easier to the producing wells.

In all, more than 97% of the
CO₂ stays permanently stored

in the oil reservoir.

In addition to carbon capture and storage, North Dakota is working on other ESG initiatives regarding reduction of CO₂ emissions 
such as using CO₂ for EOR, water recycling in oilfi elds, plastics manufacturing using excess and fl ared natural gas, geothermal 
energy production, and a recently announced partnership with Bakken Energy and Mitsubishi Power to create a blue hydrogen 
hub, composed of facilities that produce, store, transport and consume clean hydrogen.

T E R T I A R Y  R E C O V E R Y  ( C O ₂  E N H A N C E D  O I L  R E C O V E R Y )

BENEFITS SAFET Y

Oil reservoirs can hold CO₂ the same way they’ve 
been holding other fossil fuels for millions of years.

North Dakota’s stable geology is ideal for CO₂ 
EOR.

The oil industry has 40+ years of CO₂ EOR 
experience.

Millions of additional barrels of oil have been 
safely produced (Texas, Montana, Mississippi and 
Saskatchewan).

4,000 miles of CO₂ pipelines in North America 
move CO₂ every day without incident.

Produces greener oil with a smaller carbon footprint 
because CO₂ is permanently stored in the process.

Provides economic incentive to capture the industrial 
CO₂ as it is sold to offset the cost of capture.

Enhances energy security with homegrown oil 
production.

Generates and maintains well-paying jobs, tax base 
and viable communities.

Reduces industrial CO₂ emissions into the 
atmosphere.

For more information, please contact Rich Garman or Tom Oakland at 701-328-5300.
Sources for most of this information and additional research materials can be found on the EERC website at: https://undeerc.org/pcor/Resources.aspx



N O R T H  D A K O T A 
U N C R E W E D  A I R C R A F T  S Y S T E M S   ( U A S ) : 
T H E  N E X T  G E N E R A T I O N
North Dakota’s uncrewed aircraft systems sector continues to lead the 
nation in supporting the agricultural and energy industries, commercializing 
intellectual property and operationalizing federal requirements. To continue 
this growth and momentum, North Dakota must continue to invest in growing 
its Beyond Visual Line of Sight (BVLOS) network, support robust operations at 
the Northern Plains UAS Test Site (NPUASTS) and expand infrastructure at the 
Grand Sky UAS Park to support highly diverse and well-paying jobs as well as 
the national security mission.

G R A N D  S K Y :  T H E  N A T I O N ’ S 
F I R S T  P R I V A T E  U A S  P A R K

UAS business and aviation 

UAS operations and research 
and development. Grand Sky 

and temporary facilities for 
commercial UAS development 
and testing, as well as defense-
related operations support and 
has attracted more than $100 
million in private investment. 

secure defense networks, dark 

uncongested airspace with 
less than 10 operations daily 

operations are supported 
with electronics component 
distributors, metal fabrication, 

support for the most 
demanding test requirements. 
Grand Sky partners like the 
Northern Plains UAS Test 
Site (NPUASTS )can support 
airspace needs. Grand Sky is 
home to one of the nation’s 

U A S  ( U N C R E W E D  A I R C R A F T  S Y S T E M S )

I N D U S T R Y  F A C T S

STATE 
COMMITMENT 

FOR NEW 
INFRASTRUCTURE

$33 
MILLION

1 ST

TOTAL 
INVESTMENT BY 

THE STATE OF 
NORTH 

DAKOTA

$78 
MILLION

VANTIS

BVLOS 
SYSTEM

THE 
NATION’S F IRST

UAV 
TRANSATLANTIC 

FL IGHT

V A N T I S



I N D U S T R Y  C L U S T E R S 
The North Dakota UAS entrepreneur cluster is larger than any other 
accelerator, incubator or entrepreneur center in the nation.

Almost all UAS companies operate in North Dakota, including:  
• Northrop Grumman 
• General Atomics 
• Collins Aerospace
• Thales USA
• SkySkopes
• ISight RPV Services
• Botlink
• Thread
• Airial Robotics 

S U C C E S S E S
• Participation in the 

FAA’s BEYOND program 
which continues the 
partnership that was 
started through the 
UAS Integration Pilot 
Program 

• Northrup Grumman 
endurance testing 

• Department of 
Homeland Security 
Northern Border 
Airspace Domain 
Awareness Test Bed

• Four contracts awarded 
to support the United 
States Air Force Agility 
Prime program

P R E M I E R 
T E S T  S I T E 
A D V A N T A G E S

• Strong industry support
• Open terrain
• Robust energy and agriculture 

industry clusters
• Broad infrastructure, including 

Grand Sky Business Park and 
Northern Plains Test Site 

• Research through UND 
Research Institute for 
Autonomous Systems

• History and culture of aviation 
safety

• Uncongested airspace
• Climate diversity
• Unique testing locations and 

scenarios

K E Y  N O R T H
D A K O T A
G R O W T H

$400 million
in private sector 
investment.

Federal partners
include DoD, CBP and 
FAA.

Almost 50 UAS 
companies call North 
Dakota home. 

employed by the 
industry. 

For more information, contact Brian Opp at brlopp@nd.gov



G R O W I N G  V A L U E  I N 
N O R T H  D A K O T A  A G R I C U L T U R E
Agriculture is a leading industry in North Dakota, consistently ranking high in 

A  S T A T E  P O I S E D  F O R 
E C O N O M I C  G R O W T H

ongoing value-added opportunities.

V A L U E - A D D E D  A G R I C U L T U R E

26,000
F A R M S  A N D 

R A N C H E S  A C R O S S 
3 9 . 3  M I L L I O N 

A C R E S

$4.3 
BILLION

A G R I C U L T U R E 
E X P O R T S 
A B R O A D

I N D U S T R Y  F A C T S

40
F A R M E R S 
M A R K E T S

N O R T H  DA KOTA  L E A D S  T H E  N AT I O N
North Dakota leads the nation in the production of the 
following commodities:
• dry beans, all
• pinto beans
• canola
• 
• honey
• peas, dry edible
• wheat, durum
• wheat, spring

(USDA 2022 report on 2021 production)



TOP 10 EXPORT COUNTRIES FROM NORTH DAKOTA

3. 

4. 

6. 
7. 

8. 
9. 

D I D  Y O U  K N O W ?

P R O C E S S I N G  A N D 
P R O D U C T I O N  I N C E N T I V E S

• 

• 
• 

• 

• 

• 
• 
• 
• 

• 
• 
• 

Wheat is produced in 
all 53 counties in North 

Beef cattle are raised in 
every North Dakota county 

and calves across the state. 
1.2 cattle 

for every person in 
North Dakota.

40 million gallons of 
milk each year.

12,127 head of bison

North Dakota has 
Seven renewable 
fuel facilities.

For more information, contact Kevin Sonsalla at ksonsalla@nd.gov



The Innovation Technology Loan Fund (LIFT) is an innovation loan fund that 

intellectual property within the state of North Dakota. The following industries 
qualify for these funds: 

• Advanced computing and data
management

• Agriculture technology
• Autonomous and unmanned vehicles

and related technologies
• Energy
• Health care
• Value-added agriculture
• Value-added energy
•

industry that will contribute to the

The use of the loan funds are available to 
enhance capacity and to the extent possible, 
leverage state, federal and private sources of funding. Loan funds may be used to 
conduct applied research, experimentation or operational testing within the state. 
Loan funds may not be used for capital or building investments or for research, 
academic or instructive programming, workforce training, administrative costs, or 
to supplant funding for regular operations of institutions of higher education.

Approval for LIFT applications shall be made by the LIFT Committee with the 
following considerations: 

1. Deliver applied research, experimentation or operational testing in one

enhance North Dakota companies or industries or companies making
investments in North Dakota.

2.
solution.

3. Result in the development of a new company or expansion of an existing

investment or skilled jobs.

More info can be found by visiting NDCC Chapter 6-09.18 or contacting Carla 
Valentine at crvalentine@nd.gov. 

INNOVATION TECHNOLOGY LOAN FUND

F U N D  F A C T S

4
P A R T I C I P A N T S

$2   
MILLION

I N  L O A N S 
A W A R D E D

3
C O M P A N Y 

E X I T S

LIFT LOAN 
TERMS 

INCLUDE:
•

three years of the loan.
• 2% interest for the next

two years of the loan.
• An interest rate equal

to a standard Bank of
North Dakota loan for
all subsequent years.

M O R E 
T H A N

I N D U S T R I E S  R E P R E S E N T E D

A D V A N C E D 
C O M P U T I N G 

A N D  D A T A 
M A N A G E M E N T

A G R I C U L T U R E 
T E C H N O L O G Y

E N E R G Y 
A N D 

V A L U E - A D D E D 
E N E R G Y

H E A L T H  C A R E V A L U E - A D D E D 
A G R I C U L T U R E

U A S

UPDATED 0



L I F T  S U C C E S S  E X A M P L E S

For more information, contact Carla Valentine at crvalentine@nd.gov

TracFrac Inc. — A Bismarck-based company developing a patent pending  
scheduling platform that coordinates activities between operators and service 
companies in the oil and gas industry. Currently working with two major energy 
companies in North Dakota, TracFrac adds reliability and automation to the oil and 

Checkable Medical Corp. — Developing an at-home strep test to be 
manufactured in North Dakota and launching an at-home rapid COVID-19 
antibody test. LIFT support allowed it to move the founding team to the state 
and partner with a North Dakota clinical research partner to execute its trial. 
The company plans to create high-paying jobs in the bioscience industry in 
the next couple years.

Three Farm Daughters — 

Three Farm Daughters has launched three pasta products and a 100% wheat 

Forks local chef for recipe development.

First-I LLC (KSI Video) — Currently contracting its software services 

is applying for matching funding from other sources and plans to have a commercially viable 

Access Point Technologies EP Inc. — A global supplier of innovative medical devices focused 
on meeting the needs of the large and fast-growing electrophysiology (EP) market, estimated 
at $5 billion today with an 11% compound annual growth rate. APT EP designs and develops 
new catheters and systems for treating cardiac arrhythmias. It is building a new research and 
development center in Horace which will be ready in Q1 2021 and plans 
to develop both catheters and systems in this new facility. In addition, the 
company plans to hire and train local engineering talent and partner with 



The LIFT initiative approved $29.14 million (97%) of the appropriated funds ($30 
Million) as of August 2022, since the inception of the program in the 2019-21 
biennium. The program has provided funding to 35 North Dakota businesses in 

as suppliers and manufacturers. Induced jobs are local industries that increase 

restaurants, retail and entertainment. From 2020 to 2024, the LIFT program is 

• 

product sold.
• 

collective $51.7 million, an 

• Across all industries, there is an 

participating in the LIFT program 

these jobs are projected to be in 

M E T H O D O L O G Y

ECONOMIC IMPACTS FROM LIFT

F U N D  F A C T S

$265 
MILLION

P R O J E C T E D 
A N N U A L 

E C O N O M I C 
O U T P U T 

I N C R E A S E

1

1,163
A V E R A G E 

E X P E C T E D  J O B 
C R E A T I O N 

A C R O S S  A L L 
I N D U S T R I E S

$158 
MILLION

P R O J E C T E D 
A N N U A L  G D P 

I N C R E A S E

$51.7 
MILLION

E S T I M A T E D 
I N C R E A S E  I N 

P E R S O N A L 
I N C O M E

L I F T  R E C I P I E N T S 
B Y  I N D U S T R Y



L I F T  S U C C E S S  E X A M P L E S

For more information, contact Carla Valentine at crvalentine@nd.gov

TracFrac Inc. — 

Checkable Medical Corp. — Developing an at-home strep test to be 

Three Farm Daughters — 

Forks local chef for recipe development.

Access Point Technologies EP Inc. — A global supplier of innovative medical devices focused 

First-I LLC (KSI Video) —



F U N D I N G  T H E  E N T R E P R E N E U R I A L 
E C O SYST E M  I N  N O R T H  D A KOTA
Innovate ND provides entrepreneurs access to venture tools, resources and 
mentorship. Some of the benefi ts include:

• Access to a certifi ed entrepreneurial center
• Assistance on the Business Model Canvas, including value proposition and 

customer identifi cation
• Business planning tools
• Prototype development
• Access to the statewide entrepreneurial ecosystem

I N N O V A T E  N O R T H  D A K O T A

I N N O V A T E  F A C T S
( 2 0 21 - 2 3  B I E N N I U M )

72
T O T A L 

P A R T I C I P A N T S

23
B U S I N E S S E S 
C U R R E N T L Y 
E N R O L L E D

12
P R O G R A M 

G R A D U A T E S

92%
G R A D U A T E S 

S T I L L  I N 
B U S I N E S S

P R O G R A M  P H A S E S
E F F E C T I V E  J U L Y  1 , 2 019

UPDATED 01/04/2023

ENTREPRENEUR CENTERS
These centers have dedicated staff  to support and mentor 
entrepreneurs through the Business Model Canvas:

CTB 
(Bismarck)

NDSU Research and 
Technology Park (Fargo)

Jamestown Regional 
Entrepreneur Center 

(Jamestown)

UND Center for Innovation 
(Grand Forks)

PHASES ENTRY 
FEE

DOLLAR 
AWARD

MATCH
CASH OR IN-KIND

PHASE 
LENGTH

1 - Voucher $250 $2,000 Equal to 25% of 
award dollars 
reimbursed. 

Minimum of $5,000 
by end of Phase 3

3 Months

2 - Voucher $6,000 6 Months

3 - Voucher $12,000 6 Months

4 - Voucher $20,000 $5,000 12 Months

TOTAL $250 $40,000 $10,000 27 Months



E X A M P L E S  O F  S U C C E S S F U L  P R O G R A M  E N T R E P R E N E U R S

For more information, contact Carla Valentine at crvalentine@nd.gov

Be More Colorful (BMC) — a Fargo-based tech startup that develops digitally immersive virtual 
reality experiences. CareerViewXR is a recently-launched community education product that focuses on 
providing virtual career exploration to students and career-seekers. CareerViewXR is 
set to launch more than 12 virtual experiences in 2021, including an exciting prototype 
project with the Fargo Police Department. “We’re so excited about CareerViewXR, which 
wouldn’t have been possible without funding and support from Innovate North Dakota,” 
CEO Matt Chaussee said. “This product is the future of our company and has amazing potential to help 
North Dakota students and job seekers see a bright and shining future for themselves in our state, too.” 

PushSave® — a customized mobile coupon book designed to support high school sports teams and 
sports sports clubs across the U.S. with a simple, EASY to promote and manage fundraiser! Our mission is 
to be THE MOST uniquely designed fundraising solution that brings obvious value to 
consumers, organizations, and merchants.

Healthy Oilseeds LLC — a Carrington processor providing quality fl axseed and 
hempseed products from North Dakota growers. The company exports to 23 countries and 
does business in 49 states. Healthy Oilseeds was featured on the North Dakota Trade Offi  ce 
website on Dec. 3, 2020, on LinkedIn and was named the North Dakota Exporter of the Year in 
2012.

In the Potter’s Hand — a Pride of Dakota member located in North Dakota. In the 
Potter’s Hand is a family-owned, farm-based business that off ers unique, allergen specifi c 
products, including skin care, bath, baby and spa products while providing full disclosure 
on all ingredients used, providing a sense of confi dence for those with allergies, multiple-
chemical sensitivities or sensitive skin.

Rising Tide Software — a purpose Driven Fargo-based software development startup dedicated to 
improving the world by delivering innovative technology solutions. Rising Tide Software’s 
fi rst product, Major Incident Command Assist (MICA), is a communications and workfl ow 
platform that helps law enforcement manage major incident responses more safely, effi  ciently, 
and eff ectively. MICA supports the coordination of the collaborative eff orts of numerous law 
enforcement agencies in response to major incidents such as child abductions and active 
shooter situations. 

Thaea — a Fargo-based software development company specializing in router management software. 
Thaea has created RemoteWinBox and Admiral to help Internet Service Providers automate 
their network operations and provide management tools to their subscribers. InnovateND 
opened doors to global growth and helped Thaea defi ne, reach, and educate its market. 
With thousands of customers around the world using the platform to simplify operations of 
providing internet, Thaea has allowed small operators to off er greater internet in rural areas. 
What began as a crucial, small role in creating a better internet network locally is now growing 
to connect everyone across the entire globe.



E C O N O M I C  D E V E L O P M E N T  T O O L

•

•
•

•

•

•

•

D E V E L O P M E N T  F U N D

8
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D E V E L O P M E N T 
F U N D   F A C T S

For more information, contact  Jessica Nygaard at jnygaard@nd.gov



M A N U F A C T U R I N G  O P P O R T U N I T I E S 
Strong market growth, both domestically and internationally, have contributed 
to a healthy manufacturing economy in the state. Advanced manufacturing 
companies doing business in North Dakota include Doosan (Bobcat), John Deere, 
CNH Industrial, Air Liquide and Caterpillar.

Due to an abundance of energy, a skilled workforce, and a business friendly 
climate (due in part to being the only state in the nation with its own state bank), 
North Dakota has enjoyed robust expansion in primary sector activity. Strong 
market growth, both domestically and internationally, has contributed to a 
healthy manufacturing economy.

Manufacturing and technology-based businesses in North Dakota face a serious 
threat from international competition. North Dakota manufacturers are not 
immune to the pressures of globalization and competition.

The Department of Commerce has concluded, through a combination of a 
manufacturing surveys and personal visits with manufacturing leaders across the 
state, that future expansion of our manufacturing sector will come not from labor 
growth, but rather from innovation and productivity gains, as well as a strong 
focus on developing foreign markets. State policy has been put into place to help 
stimulate and incentivize growth in this area.

P A R T N E R S

expand North Dakota’s exports to high-demand foreign markets. In 2018, North 
Dakota led the nation in export growth, with a 35% increase over the previous 
year. Continued support and funding for the NDTO are essential to continued 
market growth for our state’s manufacturers, producers and exporters. Find more 
information at www.NDTO.com.

Impact Dakota 
Impact Dakota is the North Dakota delivery organization of the U.S. Department 
of Commerce’s nationwide Manufacturing Extension Partnership (MEP) 

to North Dakota-based manufacturing and ag-processing companies. Impact 
Dakota supports North Dakota manufacturers by conducting detailed needs 
assessments, outlines potential solutions and provides technical assistance to 

$30.1 million in gained and retained sales, $2.9 million in cost savings, $4.4 
million in investments made, and 219 jobs created and retained as direct result of 
projects delivered by Impact Dakota. 

M A N U F A C T U R I N G

82%
O F  N D 

E X P O R T E R S 
A R E  S M A L L 
B U S I N E S S

71% 
GROWTH

T O T A L  O U T P U T
2011–2021

$4.63
 BILLION

I N D U S T R Y 
O U T P U T
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I N D U S T R Y  F A C T S
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O U T P U T 
2 0 21

UPDATED 06/08/2022



T R A D E  A N D 
T R A N S P O R T  B Y 
T H E  N U M B E R S

Two Foreign Trade Zones

Two Canada-Mexico 
Trade Corridors

Five International 
Airports 

Top Five Export 
Markets — Canada, 
Mexico, Australia, Germany, 
Brazil

Two Major Interstates —
I-94 East/West and 
I-29 North/South

Two Mainline 
Railroads — 
Burlington Northern Santa 

Manufacturers in North 
Dakota account for 7.3% 
of the total output in 
the state, employing 7.7% 
of the workforce

For more information, contact David Lehman at dlehman@nd.gov

Workforce
• New Jobs Training Program — 

Grant program reimbursing 
employee withholding taxes

• Operation Intern – Grant 
program designed to 
create new internships and 
apprenticeships in North 
Dakota’s target industries

• Career Builders Scholarship and 
Loan Repayment Program – 
Public/private matching fund 
program to promote skilled 
workforce jobs requiring a two-
year degree or less

Financial Incentives
• North Dakota Development 

equity program 
• PACE Program — Interest 

buy-down program at Bank of 
North Dakota 

• MATCH Program — Loans at 
U.S. Treasury yield rate + 0.25% 

• Financial Investment for 
Technology (LIFT) — Innovation 
loan fund to support 
technology. Low (0-2%) 

and development in target 

S T R A T E G I C  I N C E N T I V E 
A D V A N T A G E S

Income Tax Exemptions
• Five-year corporate income 

tax exemption for new or 
expanding primary sector 
business

Sales Tax Exemptions
• Sales and use tax exemption 

on machinery and equipment
• Utilities are not taxed in state

Property Tax Exemptions
• 

property tax exemption 
• 

available for agricultural 
processors 

• Payment in lieu of a property 
tax exemption. A company 

graduated tax rate for a period 
not to exceed 20 years 

• Personal property is not 
taxed, including equipment, 
materials in process and 
accounts receivable

Tax Credits
• Automation Tax Credit – Tax 

credit designed to promote 
factory automation in North 
Dakota

• Investment tax credits for 
business investors 

Areas of service include, but are not limited to:

• Process Improvement
• Business Operations Optimization — Strategy, Structure, People, 

Methods, Communications, Metrics and Rewards
• 

Safety, ISO, etc. 
• Quality Management Systems 
• Workforce Development
• Automation 
• Performance Improvement: Growth Strategies and Innovation



opportunities in oil and gas, coal and alternative energy production. North 
Dakota is a proactive producer and serves as a model in fostering innovative, 
long-term strategies to meet our 
nation’s growing energy demand. 
The state strives with an “all 
of the above” approach in the 
development of its wide-ranging 
energy sector while meeting 
the need for energy security in 
an environmentally responsible 

a comprehensive package of 
incentives to stimulate growth in 
all energy sectors and creates a 
broad-based energy strategy that 
maximizes the state’s resources.

E N E R G Y  D E V E L O P M E N T  I N C E N T I V E S

E N E R G Y  A N D  N AT U R A L  R E S O U R C E S
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Financial Incentives
• 
• Bank of North Dakota PACE Program – Interest buy down program.
• Bank of North Dakota Match Program – Loans at U.S. Treasury yield rate 

+0.25% to businesses other than retail that create new wealth, provide jobs 

• Clean and Sustainable Energy program – Grant and funding options for 
research, development and commercialization of large scale innovative 
energy projects administered through the ND Industrial Commission.

• Renewable Energy Program – Grant and funding options to foster the 
development of renewable energy and related industrial technologies 
within a broad range of commercial applications. Overseen by the ND 
Industrial Commission.

Property Tax Exemptions
• 

for agricultural processors or projects located on property leased from a 
governmental entity.

• Payment in lieu of a property tax exemption, in full or part. A company may 

privilege tax may be applied to coal conversion facilities.  
• Exemptions on all personal property from property taxation except that of 

Corporate Tax Exemptions
• Five-year corporate income tax exemption for new or expanding primary 

sector business.



E N E R G Y 
H I G H L I G H T S

Sales Tax Exemptions
• 
• Sales and use tax exemptions may be granted for purchasing tangible 

personal property used to construct or expand electrical generating 

• Sales and use tax exemptions may be granted for purchasing tangible 
personal property used for carbon-dioxide enhanced oil or gas recovery, 

coal from a new mine. 

Job Training Programs
• One-stop job training assistance – Both state and federal programs 

available for businesses.
• New Jobs Training Program – Grant program utilizing employee 

withholding tax.

S U P P O R T I N G  I N F R A S T R U C T U R E

For more information, contact Rich Garman at rgarman@nd.gov 
or Tom Oakland at thomas.oakland@nd.gov

Williston Basin crude oil 
export capacity included 
nearly 1.5 million barrels 
transported by pipeline 
per day and 800K barrels 
by rail per day, totaling 
nearly 2.3 million 
barrels per day.

Electric vehicle 
charging stations 
have doubled across 
North Dakota with plans 
for more.

32 North Dakota 
facilities process natural 
gas and have a capacity 
of over four billion cubic 
feet per day.

In 2021, North Dakota 
had over 4,000 MW 
of installed wind 
capacity, with interest 
in an additional 6,200 
MW.  Ranked 7th in 
the nation for installed 
capacity share with 
31% of total electric 
generation coming from 
wind.

N O R T H  D A K O T A  E N E R G Y  S I T E S

29,655 Miles of Pipeline
• 17 major crude oil pipelines, including 

Enbridge, Keystone, Marathon 
Petroleum and Dakota Access.

• Nine natural gas pipelines, including 
Alliance, Northern Border and WBI 
Energy.

• Four product pipelines, including 
Cenex, Kinder Morgan Cochin, 
Magellan, and NuStar Energy.

Rail Services
• Class 1 Carriers – BNSF and Canadian 

• Four regional lines.
• 38 container service/transloading 

facilities. 
• 42 loop/ladder tracks.

North Dakota Port Services Inc. 
Serviced by BNSF

• Adjacent to mainline 
switch yard.

• Daily service and 
highway access.

• Fully operational 
intermodal facility with 
LNG capacity. 

Electrical Capacity
• More than 42 million 

megawatt hours of 
electricity generated 
annually.

• More than half of state’s 
generated electricity is 
exported.



F IND THE GOOD L IFE   STRATEGIC 
MARKET ING AND RECRUITMENT CAMPAIGN
The North Dakota Department of Commerce 
Workforce and Tourism and Marketing divisions 
have partnered with national talent attraction 
agency RoleCall to develop a comprehensive 
talent attraction marketing campaign built around 
the established Find the Good Life brand. The 
purpose of this initiative it to change perceptions 
of our state, improve awareness and showcase the 
best of life in North Dakota.

Advertising that targets four personas: 
boomerangs, young families, recent college 

to the refreshed  website. 
The website includes a relocation help desk that 
provides a personalized relocation assistance 
service for prospective residents. The personalized 
service begins with a series of questions that 
includes basic information pertaining to relocation 
such as career goals, hobbies, and interest in 

is used to connect potential new workers to more 
than 60 community champions who assist with 
details on their community.  

potential workers through the sales funnel and 
connects them to communities and employers 

E A R L Y  R E S U L T S

F A C T S

35K 
O P E N  J O B S 
I N  N O R T H 

D A K O T A

22%
O F  U . S . 

R E S I D E N T S 
S U R V E Y E D  A R E 
F A M I L I A R  W I T H 

N D

68%
O F  U . S .  R E S I D E N T S 

S U R V E Y E D  W O U L D 

C O N S I D E R  N D

O N L Y

UPDATED 01/06/2023

For more information, contact Janna Pastir at jalpastir@nd.gov
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79% 59% 47% 1%

MOST USEFUL TOOLS WHEN 
CONSIDERING RELOCATION

Maybe

Yes

No
32%

32%

36%

INTEREST IN RELOCATING 
TO NORTH DAKOTA

Q: If a job opportunity that matched 
your skill and salary requirements were 

you be willing to relocate?

24% of respondents report that they 
would not be willing to relocate to North 
Dakota because of the climate. Other top 
reasons preventing relocation: too far 
from family/friends and unknown.* 

$438,000 marke t ing 
campaign has  de l ivered

More than 
10 mi l l ion 

impress ions

53,000 c l icks  to 
webs i te

5,000 
convers ions 

Near ly  2 mi l l ion 
v ideo comple t ions 

Top States:
• FL
• CA
• TX
• OH
• GA

Top Industries:
• Health Care
• Skilled Trades
• Sales and 

Marketing
• Manufacturing
• Social Services
• Transportation

*Based on a 2022 national consumer 
perception study on ND



R O L E  O F 
W O R K F O R C E 
D E V E L O P M E N T 
C O U N C I L
The role of the North Dakota 
Workforce Development Council 
is to advise the governor and the 
public concerning the nature and 
extent of workforce development 
in the context of North Dakota’s 
economic development needs, and 

of available resources and avoiding 

The Workforce Development 
Council consists of more than 30 
members, with representation from 

state workforce partners and local 

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL 

F A C T S

78%
N D  H I G H 
S C H O O L 

S T U D E N T S  I N 
C T E  C O U R S E S

1,350
R E L E A S E D 

A N N U A L L Y 
F R O M  N D 

C O R R E C T I O N A L 
F A C I L I T I E S

620
W I O A 

P A R T I C I P A N T S

S U P P O R T E D 
B Y  T E C H N I C A L 
S K I L L S  G R A N T 

I N  2 0 2 0

L E T T E R  F R O M  T H E 
C H A I R

As chair of the North Dakota 
Workforce Development Council, 
I am pleased to forward 10 
recommendations and four 
endorsements that the council 
believes can help address the 
greatest workforce challenges 
faced by the state of North Dakota 
today and in the coming years. 
These recommendations fall 
under four themes: earlier and 
more diverse career exploration, 
addressing the technical skills gap; 
removing barriers to employment; 
occupational licensing reform; and 
recruitment and retention of North 
Dakota workers.

20+ 
PROGRAMS 94

94

29

2

22

1806

281

281

281

52

52

5

1806

83

83

83

2

85

29

MINOT

BISMARCK

WAHPETON

FARGO
WEST FARGO

BOWMAN

GRAND FORKS

DICKINSON

WATFORD CITY

UNDERWOOD

W D C  M E M B E R  L O C A T I O N S

Council members represent large and small communities across the state.



“Interns are an important part of OmniByte history and future. I 
have been utilizing the Operation Intern program nearly since its 
inception. I have been a big supporter of having a solid internship 
program where we provide real-world work for students while 
realizing value-added output from them.”
– President and CEO Ray Berry of OmniByte Technology

Attracting workers to North Dakota is essential in helping to meet the state’s 
current and future workforce needs. Internships provide a valuable way for 
students to make connections with businesses and identify career options in 
North Dakota. Operation Intern is designed to expand the number of internships, 
work experience and apprenticeship positions with North Dakota employers. 

The program’s primary focus is employers in the state’s targeted industries: 
energy, advanced manufacturing, value-added agriculture, tourism and 
technology-based businesses. Funding may also be granted for other in-demand 
occupations on the Workforce Development Council’s In-Demand Occupations 

with the exception of the tourism and health care industries.

North Dakota businesses receive up to $4,000 in matching funds for the 
internships. Funding can be used for items needed for the intern to perform 

reimbursement. The funding is a one-to-one match.

The Workforce Development Division of the North Dakota Department of 
Commerce manages Operation Intern. 

O P E R A T I O N  I N T E R N

F A C T S

3,780 
I N T E R N S H I P 
P O S I T I O N S 

A S S I S T E D

B U S I N E S S E S 
P A R T I C I P A T I N G 

S I N C E  2 0 0 7

$4,000
M A T C H I N G 

F U N D S 
A V A I L A B L E

“This apprenticeship program is important as this is a growing and 

new skills and earn higher wages.”
– Human Resources Manager Vicki Ham with Marvin Windows

For more information, contact opintern@nd.gov
or visit ndgov.link/OpIntern

UPDATED 0



M E E T I N G  N E E D S  I N  N O R T H  D A K O T A 
Last year more than 200 Americans of all ages and backgrounds met local 
needs, strengthened communities, and expanded economic opportunity 
through national service in North Dakota. The AmeriCorps Agency invested 

solutions, working hand in hand with local partners to empower citizens to 
solve problems. 

A M E R I C O R P S :  H E L P I N G  C O M M U N I T I E S

located in North Dakota. Programs are open to U.S. citizens, nationals, or 
lawful permanent resident aliens age 17 and older. Members may serve full 
or part-time over a period not to exceed 12 months. Individuals can serve as 
AmeriCorps members in North Dakota depending on the location of currently 
funded AmeriCorps projects. AmeriCorps grants provide assistance to eligible 
organizations and agencies to recruit, train and supervise AmeriCorps members 
in meeting critical community needs in the areas of:  

• Education
• Disaster services
• Health
• Environmental stewardship
• Economic opportunity
• Service to veterans and

military families

M E M B E R S H I P 
B E N E F I T S 

• Living allowances (established
by project)

• Education awards for
members (not to exceed the
maximum federal college Pell
Grant)

• Career development for
members

• Community volunteer activity
required by many colleges 
and universities 

A M E R I C O R P S

F A C T S

F U L F I L L I N G 
A  N E E D

ServeND conducts an 
annual competition for 
AmeriCorps funding. 
The following types of 
organizations and agencies 
are eligible to participate:  

• State and local

organizations
• Community and faith-

based organizations
• State, local and higher

education institutions
• State and local

governments
• U.S. territories

$ 50K
A N N U A L 

F U N D I N G

2,400
A M E R I C O R P S 
M E M B E R S  I N 

N D

2.7 
MILLION

H O U R S  O F 
S E R V I C E

I N  E D U C A T I O N 
A W A R D S

$6.2 
MILLION

UPDATED 0



D I D  Y O U  K N O W

For more information, contact Ryan Volk at rdvolk@nd.gov

P A R T I C I P A T E  A S  A N  O R G A N I Z A T I O N
Serve ND is leading the challenge in our state to serve communities 
in need. The goal is to provide resources such as AmeriCorps funding 
to eligible North Dakota organizations and agencies committed to 
providing service. AmeriCorps funding helps organizations and agencies 
recruit, train and supervise AmeriCorps members to meet critical 
community needs. 

A M E R I C O R P S 
AmeriCorps members meet pressing local needs across North Dakota, 
making a lasting impact in communities while gaining valuable skills and 
experience to advance their careers.  

AmeriCorps members serve in one of three programs: AmeriCorps 
National Civilian Community Corps (NCCC), AmeriCorps state and 
national and AmeriCorps Volunteers In Service To America (VISTA). All 
programs engage volunteers at locations across the country through 

based groups.  
• AmeriCorps State and National members engage in a diverse 

range of service projects at local and national organizations 
to address critical community needs of disaster services, 
economic opportunity, education, healthy futures, environmental 
stewardship and veterans and military families. Most AmeriCorps 
grant funding goes to the North Dakota State Commission on 
National and Community Service, the Governor-appointed State 
Service Commission, which in turn awards grants to organizations 
to respond to local needs.  

• AmeriCorps VISTA taps the skills, talents, and passion of 

poverty.  
• AmeriCorps NCCC strengthens communities and develops 

leadership skills by contributing to public safety, environment, 
and disaster projects through direct, team-based service. Federal 
Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) Corps, a unit of NCCC, 
focuses solely on disaster preparedness, response, and recovery.   

In exchange for their service, AmeriCorps members earn a Segal 
AmeriCorps Education Award that can be used to pay for trade school, 

Since 1994, more than 2,400 North Dakota residents have served 
approximately 2.7 million hours and earned education awards totaling 
more than $6.2 million. 

65.2% of state residents 
do favors for neighbors

25.5% of state residents do 
something positive for 
the neighborhood

39.7% of state residents 
participate in local 
groups or organizations

62.6% of state residents 
donate $25 or more to 
charity

Volunteer service is 
worth an estimated 
$377.8 million

Ranked 11th in the 
nation, 37.4% of North 
Dakota residents volunteer

218,019 volunteers 
contribute 15.6 million 
hours of service statewide



T O U R I S M  D I V E R S I F I E S 
N O R T H  D A K O T A ’ S  E C O N O M Y

T O U R I S M  I S  A N  E X P O R T  C O M M O D I T Y

T R A V E L  A N D  T O U R I S M

41K
J O B S

2,9 00
R E L A T E D 

B U S I N E S S E S  A N D 
ORGANIZATIONS

$2.6
 BILLION
I N  V I S I T O R 
S P E N D I N G 

I N D U S T R Y  F A C T S

21.7
 MILLION

A N N U A L 
V I S I T O R S

M O R E 
T H A N

M O R E 
T H A N

F A S T  F A C T S  A B O U T  N O R T H  D A K O T A ’ S 
T O U R I S M  I N D U S T R Y

E C O N O M I C 
D R I V E R

S U P P O R T S 
L O C A L 
B U S I N E S S

R E V E N U E 
S O U R C E

Travel and tourism generated $2.61 billion in direct 
visitor spending and $237 million in visitor paid 
taxes to the state’s economy in 2021.

Tourism is a signifi cant revenue source for hotels, 
lodges, restaurants, museums, art galleries, parks, 
fi shing and hunting outfi tters, casinos, sporting 
events, retail outlets, coffee shops, festivals, craft 
shops, golf courses and many other businesses. In 
2021, there were more than 21.7 million visitors to 
and through North Dakota.

There are more than 2,900 businesses and 
organizations offering countless attractions, events 
and tourism-related activity in the state.



A D V E R T I S E M E N T A D V E R T I S E M E N T

M O R E  
N A T U R A L 
WO N D E R S
See some real giants at 
the Badlands Dinosaur 
Museum in Dickinson 

(35 miles east of 
Theodore Roosevelt 

National Park), 
including a complete 

Triceratops skull and six 
full dinosaur skeletons. 

A sliding window 
lets you interact with 

paleontologists at
work—they might even 

let you hold a fossil. 
At the North Dakota 
Heritage Center and 

State Museum in 
Bismarck (two hours 

east of Medora), marvel 
at more dino skeletons, 

plus one of a male 
mastodon that weighed 
about 8,000 pounds in 
his fighting days. While 

in Bismarck, board 
the Lewis and Clark 

Riverboat for a family 
cruise on the majestic 

Missouri River, the 
nation’s longest.

W H E N  Y O U R  V A C A T I O N  I N C L U D E S  S O  M A N Y 
C H I L D H O O D  F A V O R I T E S — H I K E S ,  R I D E S ,  D I N O S A U R S , 

P R A I R I E  D O G S ,  T E D D Y  B E A R S ,  P I Z Z A  A N D  I C E 
C R E A M — E V E R Y O N E  I N  T H E  F A M I L Y  G E T S  T O  B E  A  K I D .

N O R T H
D A K O T A

 T R E AT  T R O V E Find fun ice cream 
flavors like Lemon Bar, Licorice and Huckleberry at 
Hatlee + Brae in Medora, the tiny town that’s big with 
families exploring Theodore Roosevelt National Park. 
For more sweetness, check out the stuffed animals at 
Teddy’s Bears, where you can customize a cuddly cub.

K I D  C U I S I N E 
At Badlands Pizza Parlor 
in Medora, pies include 
the Cowboy Combo (ham, 
pepperoni, sausage), Barn 
Yard (roasted chicken and 
bacon) and Teddy’s Taco 
Pizza. Eyes grow wide at the 
Pitchfork Steak Fondue in 
Medora as cowboy chefs 
load pitchforks with meat 
to fry in hot oil. There’s 
a hot dog buffet for ages 
12 and under, plus kids 
eat free on Sundays and 
Wednesdays. Stonehome 
Brewing Co. in Watford 
City (83 miles north of 
Medora) offers a monster 
grilled cheese sandwich, 
plus plenty of house-made 
mac and cheese.

T W O - P O I N T 
P L AY  Z O N E
Teddy Roosevelt led “point-
to-point” hikes in a straight 
line from A to B, no matter 
what the obstacles in 
between. He inspired Point 
to Point Park, a new family 
fun center in Medora. 
Zipline over a butte, play 
mini golf through the 
Badlands, and float down 
the Lazy Little Mo, a water 
park feature attached to a 
zero-entry pool.

 C O U N T L E S S  C R I T T E R S Creatures great and small roam Theodore 
Roosevelt National Park, the vast playground named for the 26th president, who came here as a 
young man to hunt bison. The bison are still around, along with bighorn sheep, feral horses, deer, 
pronghorn, elk, snakes and lizards. The cutest critters are the prairie dogs, whose “towns”—
home to hundreds of animals—can be found right along trails and roads. Prime viewing spots 
in the park’s south unit include Old East Entrance Trail (a family-friendly hike) and Scenic Loop 
Drive. In the north unit, find a prairie dog town on the Buckhorn Trail. Just look for little mounds 
as far as you can see, and (hopefully) their residents scurrying around.

M U S T- S E E 
M U S I C A L
With horses on stage, a 
reenactment of the Battle 
of San Juan Hill (Teddy 
Roosevelt led a famous 
charge), and a fireworks 
finale, the Medora Musical
grabs the attention of even 
the most screen-centric 
family members. The 
show, performed outside 
in Medora’s Burning Hills 
Amphitheatre, is a tribute 
to Roosevelt, patriotism 
and the American West. 

E A S Y  H I K E S 
The south unit of Theodore 
Roosevelt National Park
offers several short hikes 
for families, including 
0.1-mile Skyline Vista, 
which takes you high atop 
Johnson’s Plateau; 0.2-mile 
Boicourt Overlook Trail, a 
favorite for sunsets over 
the Badlands; and 0.2-mile 
Buck Hill, a climb to the 
park’s highest accessible 
point. The 0.4-mile Wind 
Canyon Trail leads to 
dramatic views of the Little 
Missouri River valley.

Adopt Teddy  Adopt Teddy 
Roosevelt’s hiking Roosevelt’s hiking 

motto: “Over, under, motto: “Over, under, 
or through— or through—

but never around.”but never around.”

A French A French
 nobleman founded  nobleman founded 

Medora—and Medora—and 
named it  named it 

for his bride.  for his bride. 

Short hikes lead  Short hikes lead 
to long-lasting  to long-lasting 

views at Theodore  views at Theodore 
Roosevelt  Roosevelt 

National Park.National Park.

fun runs in the familyfun runs in the family

North Dakota is home to the Central Flyway, a virtual 

superhighway for millions of migrating ducks and geese. Our 

rivers, lakes and wetlands stretch far and wide, offering premier 

waterfowl habitat. Come experience it for yourself and have 

the hunt of a lifetime. Plan your trip and accommodations at 

LegendaryND.com.T H E  D U C K  FA C T O R Y

•  Estimated 3.4 million breeding ducks (up 16% over 2021)

•  23rd highest breeding duck index on record (38% above 

    the long-term average)

•  Spring water index up 616% over 2021

S E A S O N S
North Dakota’s regular non-resident seasons 

for waterfowl typically begin in early October, 

with an early season for Canada geese 

opening in August. Official dates become 

available in August. Find details and online 

licensing at: gf.nd.gov/hunting.

O P P O R T U N I T I E S

Every migration season, the skies, fields and 

wetlands of North Dakota welcome vast 

numbers and species of ducks and geese. 

With good water conditions, numbers of 

temperate-breeding Canada geese, Western 

Prairie Canada geese and arctic nesting 

Tallgrass Prairie Canada geese, snow geese 

and Ross’s geese are all high. Large-type 

Canada geese in the state are very abundant 

due to banner production in the Dakotas the 

last two years. A variety of species mean 

North Dakota offers plenty of action through 

the fall.
W H E R E  T O  H U N T

Find hunting access on 

PLOTS (Private Lands Open 

to Sportsmen), wildlife 

management areas and 

waterfowl production areas. 

Use apps to see if private 

land is electronically posted, 

then try asking for permission.

L e g e n d a r y N D . c o m

For more
informat ion:

ADVERTISEMENT

Be Ready.

V I S I T O R  S P E N D I N G  B R I N G S  O U T S I D E  D O L L A R S  I N T O  N O R T H 
D A K O T A ’ S  E C O N O M Y ,  G E N E R A T I N G  T A X  R E V E N U E ,  A D D I T I O N A L 

B U S I N E S S  I N C O M E ,  J O B S  A N D  A  M O R E  D I V E R S E  E C O N O M Y .

For more information, contact Sara Otte Coleman at socoleman@nd.gov

$400-850m

$100-400m

$36-100m

$8-16m

$4-8m

$2-4m

Under $2m

$16-30m

Travel and tourism benefi ts every county in North Dakota, creating jobs, 
generating sales across dozens of sectors and improving our quality of life.

V I S I T O R  S P E N D I N G  B Y  C O U N T Y

$ 3 8 4 
M I L L I O N

I N  L O D G I N G

$ 7 6 7 
M I L L I O N

I N  F O O D  A N D 
B E V E R A G E

$ 5 21 
M I L L I O N

I N 
TRANSPORTATION

$ 3 74 
M I L L I O N

I N  R E C R E A T I O N

$ 5 6 5 
M I L L I O N 
I N  R E T A I L

T O U R I S M  I S 
A  G A T E W A Y 
G A T E W A Y  T O 
E C O N O M I C  A N D 
W O R K F O R C E 
D E V E L O P M E N T
Businesses don’t build in a location 
they know nothing about. People 
don’t move to a location they’ve 
never visited. Tourism marketing and 
visitation are a gateway to a number of 
key economic development measures.

76% of new 
residents visited 
North Dakota  
before moving.

Visited 
prior to 
moving

15.22 million video completions



Aware + VisitationAwareUnaware

Recommend 
to friends/family

RetireInvest or 
start a business

Relocate for 
career

Raise a 
family

Live

T O U R I S M  A D V E R T I S I N G  E L E V A T E S 
N O R T H  D A K O T A ’ S  I M A G E
Advertising is a powerful tool with the ability to change perceptions, attitudes 
and behaviors. Research shows that North Dakota Tourism’s promotional 

through increased visitation and makes North Dakota a more favorable place 
to visit, live, raise a family, work or advance your career, or invest or grow a 
business.

E L E V A T I N G  I M A G E

1.4 
MILLION

15 MILLION
V I D E O 

COMPLE TIONS

2 MILLION 
M O R E  T H A N

AD EFFECTIVENESS

13%
A V E R A G E  I M A G E 

L I F T  F R O M 
A D V E R T I S I N G 
A W A R E N E S S

A D D I T I O N A L 
A D V E R T I S I N G -

M O T I V A T E D 
T R I P S

UPDATED 01/06/2023

V I S I T S  T O 
N D T O U R I S M . C O M 

I N  2 0 2 2

D I G I T A L 
CAMPAIGN HAD

12%
 LIFT

26%
 LIFT

18%
 LIFT

30%
 LIFT

18%
 LIFT

24%
 LIFT

16%
 LIFT

31%
 LIFT

8%
 LIFT

18%
 LIFT

16%
 LIFT

28%
 LIFT

H A L O  E F F E C T  O F  N O R T H  D A K O T A 
T O U R I S M  M A R K E T I N G

Dakota’s destination advertising has a positive impact on overall image lift and 
perception of economic development attributes. Tourism advertising is the most 

only to visit our state, but to consider North Dakota for relocation or business 
building.



W H Y  I N V E S T  I N 
M A R K E T I N G ?

For more information, contact Sara Otte Coleman at socoleman@nd.gov

S O L I D  A D V E R T I S I N G  O U T R E A C H

showed that 1.4 million additional trips were motivated due to 
advertising. Visitors reported spending a total of $241.9 million in 
incremental spending, of which $23.5 million was state and local taxes 
paid. Here is how far the North Dakota Tourism campaign has reached 
over the last couple of years.

TV

TV/RADIO PRINT

ND
DIGITAL

202 MILLION (2021)

83 MILLION (2020)

12 MILLION (2021)

12 MILLION (2020)

OUT-OF-HOME
255 MILLION (2021)

85 MILLION (2020)

314 MILLION (2021)

233 MILLION (2020)

ND

SOCIAL MEDIA
17 MILLION (2021)

23 MILLION (2020)

E A R N E D  M E D I A  T E L L S  T H E  N O R T H 
D A K O T A  S T O R Y
Proactive outreach to national and global media resulted in 4,019 

North Dakota’s stories. Total instances reached 20.2 billion. Additionally, 
96 global stories reached 224 million. This coverage improves awareness 
of our state and elevates our image across all Commerce focus areas.

Tourism marketing 
supports North 
Dakota’s vibrant 
communities with 
visitation and spending in 
all 53 counties.

Every dollar invested in 
North Dakota Tourism paid 
media returns $3 in tax 
revenue resulting in
$23.5 million in 
visitor-paid taxes.

Every dollar invested
in the 2021 tourism 
advertising campaign
generated $34 in direct 
visitor spending. 

Tourism marketing 
supports North Dakota 
entrepreneurs and 
businesses by raising 
awareness of North Dakota.

There are more than 41K 
visitor-supported jobs
and 2,968 tourism-related 
businesses in North Dakota.

FUN, FRIENDLY CITIES

Grand Forks, Fargo and other cities and towns throughout the state offer vibrant downtowns, inviting 

accommodations, shopping, dining and more. Look for treasures in many one-of-a-kind boutique shops filled with 

fashions and home decor or visit popular brand retailers and big-box stores. Enjoy events and attractions like street 

fairs, festivals, the Town Square Farmers Market in Grand Forks or live music playing in Fargo’s Broadway Square.

LOCAL FLAVORS

Make your holiday a culinary adventure. From downtowns to small towns, our chefs, bakers and confectioners 

have something delicious for you. Our farm-to-table restaurants, steakhouses, coffee shops, wineries, craft 

breweries and many more eateries are ready to serve.
ENTERTAINMENT AND EVENTS

B R E A K  F R E E

to the uncrowded landscapes and vibrant 

cities of North Dakota. Let us serve you 

our warm hospitality with inviting hotels 

and new restaurants, fun events and 

entertainment, and stores full of unique 

finds and popular brands. Visit us online

to plan your escape.

The calendar is full of favorite summer and fall events and festivals. Join us for big concerts, rodeos and more. 

MEDORA MUSICAL, MEDORA   

through SEPT 10

See this musical variety show performed in 

an outdoor amphitheater amid scenic Badlands.

MANDAN RODEO DAYS, MANDAN 

JULY 2-4

Catch PRCA rodeo action, street dances,

live music and local flavors.

RED RIVER VALLEY FAIR, WEST FARGO 

JULY 8-14

Enjoy fair food, crafts and outdoor live entertainment. 

PA I D  A D V E R T I S I N G

1 - 8 0 0 - 4 3 5 - 5 6 6 3         L e g e

ND

Camp Lone Tree at 701 Eateries, Fargo

Theodore Roosevelt National Park South Unit

Downtown shopping, Grand Forks

Red River Valley Fair, West Fargo

NORTH DAKOTA STATE FAIR, MINOT 

JULY 22-30

Don’t miss grandstand events and concerts including Kid Rock, 

Cody Johnson, Elvie Shane, Will Banister, Old Dominion, 

Koe Wetzel & Nelly and Sam Hunt.

NORTH DAKOTA RENAISSANCE FAIRE 

WEST FARGO, AUG 13-14, 20-21

Get medieval with games, entertainment, fair food and more.

GREENWAY TAKEOVER FESTIVAL 

GRAND FORKS, SEPT 8-11

Celebrate summer with food trucks, beer gardens and live music.

NORSK HØSTFEST, MINOT 

SEPT 28-OCT 1

Experience North America’s largest Scandinavian heritage 

festival with concerts by Big and Rich, Lady A, 

Toby Keith and Brantley Gilbert.

SPACIOUS OUTDOORS

Explore scenic drives, hiking trails and kayaking waters in 

North Dakota. Don’t miss our beautifully uncrowded Theodore 

Roosevelt National Park with its uniquely multi-colored la

of clay, sandstone, red “scoria” rock and black

Favorite places closer to Manitoba i

Peace Garden, Pembina G

Horse Hill Nat

Welcome Neighbours.

CALL OR VISIT US 

ONLINE FOR YOUR 

FREE TRAVEL GUIDE.

BISMARCK

MEDORA

MINOT

WILLISTON

FARGO

GRANDFORKS



NORTH DAKOTA
DEVELOPMENT FUND
ANNUAL REPORT 2021

SUPPORTING BUSINESS GROWTH THROUGH FINANCING AND INVESTMENT



2021 North Dakota Development Fund

North Dakota Department of Commerce 1

TABLE OF CONTENTS

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Development Fund Board Members ................................................................................................................. 2
Development Fund Staff ........................................................................................................................................ 2
Funds and Programs ............................................................................................................................................... 3
Letter from the CEO ................................................................................................................................................. 6
Development Fund: By the Numbers ............................................................................................................... 7
Development Fund Investment Locations .....................................................................................................8
Development Fund Projects ............................................................................................................................... 9

FINANCIALS
Independent Auditor’s Report ...........................................................................................................................10

Financial Statements
	 Condensed Statement of Net Position .............................................................................................15
	 Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position ....................16
	 Statements of Net Position ....................................................................................................................17
	 Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position............................................ 18

Combining Financial Statements and Supplementary Information
	 Combining Statements of Net Position............................................................................................. 29
	 Combining Statements of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Positions ................. 30
	 Combining Statements of Cash Flows ............................................................................................. 31
Schedule of Findings and Responses...............................................................................................................34



2021 North Dakota Development Fund

North Dakota Department of Commerce 2

BOARD MEMBERS AND STAFF

DEVELOPMENT FUND BOARD MEMBERS

The governor appoints an eight-member board of directors that oversee the North Dakota 
Development Fund (NDDF). Each member represents a different business sector from the 
state.

Terri Zimmerman – Fargo
Vice President
Industrial Technology and Research Sector

Matt Dunlevy – Grand Forks
Secretary/Treasurer
Industrial Technology and Research Sector

Rob Lindberg – Bismarck
Industrial Technology and Reseach 
Sector

Shawn Kessel – Bismarck
North Dakota Department of Commerce COO
Agency

Gary Goplen – Fargo
Finance Sector

Nathan Davis – Belcourt
Native American Representative
Executive Director North Dakota Indian Affairs

DEVELOPMENT FUND STAFF

Jessica Nygaard
CEO
(701) 328.7251 | jnygaard@nd.gov

Hannah Lange
Venture Financing Manager
(701) 328.7254 | hlange@nd.gov

Jim Albrecht – Wahpeton
President
Manufacturing/Rural Representative

Erik Barner – Fargo
Finance Representative 
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A TOOL FOR ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
The North Dakota Development Fund was created through legislation in 1991 as an economic development tool. It 
provides flexible gap financing through debt and equity investments for new or expanding North Dakota 
primary sector businesses.

The Development Fund makes investments of up to $3 million. The board of directors may adjust the limit when deemed 
appropriate. In general, the following criteria apply to Development Fund investments:

•  The entrepreneur must have a realistic financial 
commitment at stake. Usually, principals are 
required to have a minimum of 15% equity in the 
project.

•  Refinancing of debt is not eligible.

•  Principal shareholders with 20% or    	
greater ownership are generally required to 
guarantee the debt. Other shareholders may also 
be required to guarantee.

•  Financing is available to any primary sector 
business project with the exception of 
production agriculture.

•  Primary sector includes individuals and businesses 
which, through the employment of knowledge or 
labor, add value to a product, process or service 
which results in the creation of new wealth. Primary 
sector includes tourism and specific types of investor-
owned agriculture, and is typically businesses such 
as manufacturers, food processors or export service 
companies. Investor-owned agriculture includes 
livestock feeding or milking operations, or other value-
added agriculture located apart from an individual 
farm operation that is professionally managed and has 
employees.

•  Tourism, specific types of value-added agriculture and 
investor-owned agriculture can also qualify as primary 
sector.

Loan and equity programs managed
by the North Dakota Development Fund include:

	 • North Dakota Development Fund
	 • Regional Rural Revolving Loan Fund
	 • Rural Incentive Growth Loan Program
	 • Child Care Loan Program
	 • Venture Capital Program
	 • Small Business Technology Program

The fund provides “flexible financing” 
through loans and equity investments 
not available from most conventional 
lenders and is available to any primary 
sector business with the exception of 

production agriculture. 

The North Dakota Development Fund 
coordinates efforts between all the 

sources of financing, the business and 
the community. Any project considered 
for this financing must be feasible and 

have a reasonable chance of succeeding.
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BORROWER Any primary sector 
business

FUNDING LIMIT Up to $3 million. 
Average loan: $300,000

INTEREST RATE Subject to risk of project

TERM 1-10 years, dependent 
upon project

MINIMUM EQUITY 
REQUIREMENT 15%

PERSONAL/CORPORATE 
GUARANTEES Yes

COST AND FEES 1% of capital deployed

BORROWER
Any primary sector business or an 
investment vehicle for investment 

into a primary sector business 

FUNDING LIMIT Up to $3 million. Average convertible 
note: $250,000

MINIMUM EQUITY 
REQUIREMENT 15%

QUALIFICATIONS A North Dakota business
COST AND FEES 1% of capital deployed

MISCELLANEOUS

In cases of a preferred security or 
convertible note: 

Risk Rating: Interest/Dividend Rate
Term: 1-10 years, dependent upon 

project

DEBT EQUITY
NORTH DAKOTA DEVELOPMENT FUND

BORROWER Any primary sector 
business

FUNDING LIMIT Up to $3 million. 
Average loan: $300,000

INTEREST RATE Subject to risk of project

TERM 1-10 years, dependent 
upon project

MINIMUM EQUITY 
REQUIREMENT 15%

PERSONAL/CORPORATE 
GUARANTEES Yes

COST AND FEES 1% of capital deployed

MISCELLANEOUS

For business located
in cities with a

population of less
than 8,000 or more than 

five miles
outside city limits

BORROWER
Any primary sector business or an 
investment vehicle for investment 

into a primary sector business 

FUNDING LIMIT Up to $3 million. Average convertible 
note: $250,000

MINIMUM EQUITY 
REQUIREMENT 15%

QUALIFICATIONS A North Dakota business
COST AND FEES 1% of capital deployed

MISCELLANEOUS

In cases of a preferred security or 
convertible note: 

Risk Rating: Interest/Dividend Rate
Term: 1-10 years, dependent upon 

project
For business located in cities with 
a population of less than 8,000 or 
more than five miles outside city 

limits

DEBT EQUITY
REVOLVING RURAL LOAN FUND



2021 North Dakota Development Fund

North Dakota Department of Commerce 5

BORROWER Cities with population of 
less than 2,500

FUNDING LIMIT Maximum of $75,000

INTEREST RATE Lower than market rate – 
subject to risk of project

TERM
Working capital 1-3 years 

Equipment 3-5 years 
Real estate 7-10 years

MINIMUM EQUITY 
REQUIREMENT N/A

PERSONAL/CORPORATE 
GUARANTEES Yes

QUALIFICATIONS

A North Dakota business 
that provides 

a community an essential 
service with 

ND Dept. of Commerce 
Commissioner 

approval
COST AND FEES 1% of original loan amount

MISCELLANEOUS

The loan is made to the city 
which in turn loans to the 

business
Does not have a job 

requirement

RURAL INCENTIVE GROWTH PROGRAM
BORROWER Any licensed child care 

provider

FUNDING LIMIT Maximum of $100,000 or 
availability of funds

INTEREST RATE 2.5% - Fixed

TERM
Working capital 1-3 years

Equipment 3-5 years
Real estate 7-10 years

MINIMUM REQUIREMENT N/A
PERSONAL/CORPORATE 

GUARANTEES Yes

QUALIFICATION A licensed North Dakota 
child care provider

COST AND FEES Negotiable

MISCELLANEOUS Does not have a job 
requirement

CHILD CARE LOAN  PROGRAM

A TOOL FOR ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

BORROWER Any primary sector technology business at the start-up stage
FUNDING LIMIT $50,000

INTEREST RATE Lower than market rate – subject to risk of project

TERM

1-10 years, dependent upon project.
Investment funds may be used for:

 Developing a proof of concept
Working capital

Equipment
Real estate

MISCELLANEOUS
Detailed documentation of the availability of two ($2) dollars of angel fund investment 

matching funds for each dollar ($1) of state funds distributed under this program. 
The matching funds must be cash, come from a North Dakota Angel Fund certified 

undersection 57-38-01.26, and may not be an in-kind asset.

SMALL BUSINESS TECHNOLOGY PROGRAM
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LETTER FROM THE CEO
The North Dakota Development Fund invested $2,300,723 in 10 primary sector and child 
care projects from July 1, 2020, to June 30, 2021. The Development Fund coordinates 
eff orts between all the sources of fi nancing, the business, and the community. The fund 
provides “fl exible fi nancing” through loans and equity investments not available from 
most conventional lenders and is available to any primary sector business with the 
exception of production agriculture.

The Development Fund reported an estimated operating income of $686,551 before bad 
debt expense as of June 30, 2021, fi scal year-end, as compared to $600,167 for the fi scal 
year ending June 30, 2020. The increase in the operating income in 2021 was attributable 
to a decrease in general and administrative expenses caused by COVID-19 travel 
restrictions and transitioning to working from home. The Development Fund continues 
to pay all costs of operating the fund, including salaries and benefi ts. The cash fl ow 

generated from principal and interest collections continues to be strong at $5.8 million. The Development Fund 
continues to be a revolving loan fund as the fund has collected $9.9 million over the past two years, which in turn 
can be used for future loan and equity investments. 

The total revenue increased by $82,550 from 2020 to $988,616 in 2021. Change in cash and cash equivalents 
decreased from 2020 by $7,155,524 to $13,161. This large decrease is due to the $15 million transfer provided 
for in HB 1014 of the 2019 legislative session. Excluding the transfer from HB 1014, the cash fl ow increased 
by $7,844,476 in 2021. The fund collected $5,252,145 in principal payments in 2021, which was an increase of 
$2,435,416 from 2020. The increase in total and in operating revenue is attributable to an increase in dividend/
interest income received from investments/loans and an increase in other income. The Development Fund 
also suspended loan payments for three months in 2020 due to the COVID-19 pandemic which impacted the 
repayment of principal on loans. General and administrative expense decreased by $62,614 from $391,698 in 2020 
to $329,084 in 2021. This decrease was attributable to the pandemic which reduced travel, paused in-person board 
meetings, and reduced other operating expenses. 

Since the fund’s inception, it has invested $157 million in 866 projects with over $52.3 million invested in rural 
communities. Fund investments have contributed to the projected creation of 9,127 primary sector jobs. The 
Development Fund helped nine businesses start or expand operations this fi scal year. Of the nine businesses, two 
were in rural communities.

In providing fl exible fi nancing, the Development Fund helped primary sector and child care businesses start up or 
expand, which in turn created new jobs and generated new revenues. What follows are the highlights of the 2020-
2021 fi scal year along with the accompanying fi nancial statements. 

Jessica Nygaard, CEO
North Dakota Development Fund
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NORTH DAKOTA DEVELOPMENT FUND
By the Numbers

BY THE NUMBERS

99
Business sectors include:

866
P R O J E C T S

Investing in866
North Dakota projects 
since inception

Development 
Fund inception:

return on investment

5.9:$$ 1

8,553 primary 
sector jobs created 
since fund inception

Technology

Value-Added
Agriculture

Value-Added
Energy

Manufacturing

Child Care
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INVESTMENT LOCATIONS

NORTH DAKOTA INVESTMENT LOCATIONS
July 1, 2020–June 30, 2021

Walhalla
Rural Fund
Harvest Fuel

Minot
Child Care
Kiddie Korral 2.0

Williston
DFVC
Triple 8 LLC

Fargo/West Fargo
NDDF
3DomFuel, Inc.
DFVC
Farm QA, Inc.

Child Care
The Summit
Bright Horizons at the Learning Circle

Grand Forks
Child Care
Viscito Investments

Park River
Child Care
Kiddie Klubhouse

Number of 
Development Fund Projects

YEARS (FISCAL)

Development Fund Cash Flow
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The North Dakota Development Fund has averaged $5 million in collections in the 
past 10 years. The Development Fund continues to revolve and the funds collected

continue to be used to fund future loan and equity investments in the state.
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DEVELOPMENT FUND PROJECTS
July 1, 2020–June 30, 2021

PROJECTS

Company City Amount of Funding
Harvest Fuel Walhalla $170,785
The Summit West Fargo $50,000
Triple 8, LLC Wellspring Hydro Williston $750,000
Viscito Investments Grand Forks $100,000
3DomFuel Inc. Fargo $17,938.10
Bright Horizons at the Learning Circle Fargo $50,000
Kiddie Korral 2.0 Minot $70,000
3DomFuel Inc. Fargo $245,000
Kiddie Klubhouse Park River $97,000
FarmQA, Inc. Fargo $750,000

Total: $2,300,723

* Numbers in the table above differ from ones represented in the audit due to conflicting data methodology.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR�S REPORT 
 
 
Governor of North Dakota 
The Legislative Assembly 
 
 
To the Board of Directors 
North Dakota Development Fund, Inc. 
Bismarck, North Dakota 
 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the North Dakota Development 
Fund, Inc (the Corporation), a component unit of the State of North Dakota as of and for the 
year ended June 30, 2021, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively 
comprise the Development Fund�s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.  
 
Management�s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant 
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor�s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to the financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor�s 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity�s preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity�s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 



2021 North Dakota Development Fund 2021 North Dakota Development Fund

North Dakota Department of Commerce 11

FINANCIALS

 

- 2 - 

significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements.  
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our unmodified and adverse audit opinions. 
 
Summary of Opinions  
 
Opinion Unit Type of Opinion 
Business-Type Activities Unmodified 
Remaining Fund Information Adverse 
  
Basis for Adverse Opinion on Aggregate Remaining Fund Information 
 
Management has not included the New Venture Capital Fund in the Corporation�s financial 
statements. Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require 
the New Venture Capital Fund to be presented as a custodial fund. The amount by which this 
departure would affect the assets, liabilities, net position, revenues, and expenses of the 
business-type activities and the omitted fund has not been determined. 
 
Adverse Opinion 
 
In our opinion, because of the significance of the matter described in the �Basis for Adverse 
Opinion on Aggregate Remaining Fund Information� paragraph, the financial statements 
referred to above do not present fairly the fiduciary position of the New Venture Capital Program 
Fund of the North Dakota Development Fund, Inc. as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, or the 
changes in fiduciary net position thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Unmodified Opinions 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the respective financial position of the business-type activities of the North Dakota Development 
Fund, Inc. as of June 30, 2021, and the respective changes in financial position and, cash flows 
thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America. 
 
Prior Period Financial Statements 

The financial statements of North Dakota Development Fund, Inc as of June 30, 2020 were 
audited by other auditors whose report dated December 4, 2020 expressed an unmodified 
opinion on those statements. 

Emphasis of Matter 
As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, the financial statements present only the 
North Dakota Development Fund, Inc. and do not purport to, and do not, present fairly the 
financial position of the State of North Dakota as of June 30, 2021, the changes in its financial 
position for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America.  Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter. 
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Other Matters 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
  
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management�s discussion and analysis on pages 4 - 7 be presented to supplement the basic 
financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is 
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential 
part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate 
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the 
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of 
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management�s 
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained 
during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient 
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
 
Other Information 
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements 
taken as a whole. The combining financial statements shown on pages 20 through 22 are 
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial 
statements. 
 
The combining financial statements are the responsibility of management and were derived 
from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 
basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including 
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the financial statements or to the basic financial statements 
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the supplementary information is fairly 
stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
December 3, 2021 on our consideration of the Corporation�s internal control over financial 
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.  The purpose of that report is solely to 
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and 
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Corporation�s 
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is an integral part of an 
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the 
Corporation�s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 
 
 
 
BRADY, MARTZ & ASSOCIATES, P.C. 
BISMARCK, NORTH DAKOTA  
 
December 3, 2021
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The discussion and analysis of the financial performance of the North Dakota Development Fund, Inc. 
that follows is meant to provide additional insight into the Development Fund�s activities for the year 
ended June 30, 2021. Please read it in conjunction with the Development Fund�s financial statements 
and footnotes, which are presented within this report. 
 
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS: 
 
Total revenue increased by $82,556 (9.11%) to $988,616. Operating revenues increased by $38,690 
(4.50%) to $898,311. Change in cash and cash equivalents decreased from 2020 by $7,155,524 (-
99.82%) to $13,161. This large decrease is due to the $15 million transfer provided for in HB 1014 of 
the 2019 legislative session. Excluding the transfer from HB 1014, the cash flow increased $7,844,476 
in 2021. The Fund collected $5,252,145 in principal payments in 2021, which was an increase of 
$2,435,416 (86.46%) from 2020. The increase in total and in operating revenue is attributable to an 
increase in dividend/interest income received from investments/loans and an increase in other income. 
The NDDF suspended loan payments for 3 months in 2020 due to the COVID-19 pandemic which 
impacted the repayment of principal on loans.  
 
The Fund received $40,000 in dividend payments in 2021 from equity investments made, compared to 
$105,544 in dividend payments received in 2020.  This decrease is attributable to a change in the 
classification of convertible note interest income. Interest income from convertible notes is now 
recorded as interest income instead of dividend payments. Dividends recorded is only income 
associated with accounts for which the NDDF holds stock.  
 
General and Administrative expense decreased by $62,614 (15.99%) from $391,698 in 2020 to 
$329,084 in 2021. The decrease was attributable to the pandemic which reduced travel, paused in-
person board meetings, and reduced other operating expenses.  
 
Operating Income (loss) before non-operating revenues and expenses increased by $6,185,983 from 
($6,651,973) in 2020 to ($465,990) in 2021. The increase in the operating income (loss) in 2021 was 
attributable to a decrease in provision for losses (change in allowance). The large change in 2020 was 
caused by the purchase of New Venture Capital Program equities from Bank of North Dakota as part of 
HB 1014. The change in 2021 is attributable to additional investments made by the NDDF throughout 
the year.  
 
Interest income on deposits decreased by $42,847 (48.59%) from $88,177 received in 2020 to $45,330 
received in 2021. The Fund liquidated three of its CDs in 2021 which caused a decrease in interest 
income. 
 
The Fund does invest their excess funds into longer term deposits for a higher rate of return to coincide 
with the funding commitments made by the Fund to companies for loans and equity investments, which 
are not required to be funded in the short-term. As of the end of FY 2021, the Fund had $2 million in 
longer term certificates of deposit, which are at a higher rate of return earning more deposit interest 
which can be used to fund additional loan and equity investments to �Primary Sector� businesses in the 
State of North Dakota.  
 
Cash and cash equivalents increased by $13,161 (0.07%) to $19,653,987 (cash balance is before loan 
and investment commitments).  
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The change in net position decreased by $8,856,864 from $8,436,204 in 2020 to ($420,660) in 2021. 
The large change in 2020 was attributable to the $15 million transfer from HB 1014.   
 
Net position decreased by $420,660 from $31,077,018 at the end of year 2020 to $30,656,358 at the 
end of year 2021.  
 
Noncurrent net assets excluding equipment (software) increased by $633,451 from $6,877,225 in 2020 
to $7,510,676 in 2021. The noncurrent assets consist of the Fund�s net loan and equity investments.  
The net equity investments remained the same at $250,000 from 2020 to 2021. The equity investments 
that were charged off during 2020 and 2021 was $0. The Fund did not make any equity investments in 
2021. 
 
Net loans receivable decreased by $632,557 from $11,050,157 in 2020 to $10,417,600 in 2021. The 
loan investments made increased by $104,211 from $29,855,118 in 2020 to $29,959,329 in 2021. The 
loan investments charged off during 2021 were $370,433 as compared to $0 in 2020. The increase in 
net loans receivable in 2020 to 2021 was attributable to an increase in loans funded, net of the regular 
paydown of loans and the amount of write-offs. 
 
Interest receivable on loans increased by $15,350 to $156,210.  
 
Current portion of loans receivable decreased from $4,422,932 in 2020 to $3,156,924 in 2021. The 
decrease is attributable to loans maturing in fiscal year 2021. 
 
9 projects were funded totaling $1,575,723. 
 
REQUIRED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: 
 
The discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the Development Fund�s 
financial statements. The financial statements of the Development Fund provide accounting information 
similar to that of many other business entities. The Statement of Net Position summarizes the assets 
and liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as net position. It also serves as a basis for 
analysis of the soundness and liquidity of the Development Fund. The statement of Revenues, 
Expenses and Changes in Net position summarize the Development Fund�s operating performance for 
the year. The statements of Cash Flows summarize the flow of cash through the Development Fund as 
it conducts its business. 
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CONDENSED STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
JUNE 30, 2021, 2020 AND 2019 

 
2021 2020 2019

Assets

Current assets 22,967,121$    24,204,618$    19,391,283$    

Capital assets, net 185,101           1,360               3,738               
Noncurrent assets 7,510,676        6,877,225        3,259,629        

Total noncurrent assets 7,695,777        6,878,585        3,263,367        

Total assets 30,662,898      31,083,203      22,654,650      

Liabilities and net position

Current liabilities 6,540               6,185               13,836             

Investment in capital assets 185,101           1,360               3,738               
Restricted 11,146,179 -                       -                       
Unrestricted 19,325,078      31,075,658      22,637,076      

Total net position 30,656,358$    31,077,018$    22,640,814$    

 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash deposits with the Bank of North Dakota and are included in 
the current assets section of the statement of net position. Additional discussion of cash and cash 
equivalents can be found in Note 3 to the financial statements. 

Equity Investments 
 
Equity investments consist of capital investments in new or expanding primary sector businesses in or 
relocating to North Dakota and are included in noncurrent assets. Additional discussion of equity 
investments can be found in Note 4 to the financial statements. 
 
Loans Receivable 
 
Loans receivable consist of loans to new or expanding primary sector businesses in or relocating to 
North Dakota and are included in current and noncurrent assets in the statement of net position. 
Additional analysis of loans receivable can be found in Note 5. 
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CONDENSED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021, 2020 AND 2019 

 
2021 2020 2019

Operating revenues
Interest income on loans 858,311$       754,077$       745,580$       
Dividend income 40,000           105,544         1,746             
Other 90,305           46,445           92,619           

988,616         906,066         839,945         

Nonoperating revenue
Interest income on deposits and investments 45,330           88,177           51,819           

Total revenue 1,033,946      994,243         891,764         

Operating expenses
General and administrative 329,084         391,698         402,885         
Depreciation expense 18,311           2,378             2,378             
Bad debt expense 1,107,211      7,163,963      1,372,740      

1,454,606      7,558,039      1,778,003      

Transfers
Bank of North Dakota -                     15,000,000    -                     

Change in net position (420,660)        8,436,204      (886,239)        

Net position, beginning of year, originally stated 31,077,018    22,640,814    23,527,053    
Prior period adjustment - see note 2 -                     -                     -                     
Net position - beginning of year, restated 31,077,018    22,640,814    23,527,053    

Net position, end of year 30,656,358$  31,077,018$  22,640,814$  

 
Economic Factors and Future Outlook 
 
As a result of the spread of the COVID-19 coronavirus, economic uncertainties have arisen which are 
likely to negatively impact net interest income and dividend income. Other financial impact could occur 
though such potential impact is unknown at this time. 
 
On March 19, 2020 the Board of Directors voted to suspend loan payments and interest accrual on all 
NDDF loans where NDDF was not in a participant decision. On April 9, 2020, the Board of Directors 
voted to extend the COVID relief for an additional two months. 
 
Contacting the North Dakota Development Fund�s Financial Management  
 
The information in this report is intended to provide the reader with an overview of the Development 
Fund�s accountability for those operations. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this 
report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the North Dakota 
Development Fund, PO Box 2057, Bismarck, ND 58502-2057. 
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Assets 2021 2020

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 19,653,987$    19,640,826$    
Interest receivable on loans 156,210           140,860           
Current portion of loans receivable 3,156,924        4,422,932        

Total current assets 22,967,121      24,204,618      

Noncurrent assets
Loans receivable, net of current portion and allowance 7,260,676        6,627,225        
Equity investments, net 250,000           250,000           
Equipment, net 185,101           1,360               

Total noncurrent assets 7,695,777        6,878,585        

Total assets 30,662,898      31,083,203      

Liabilities and net position

Current liabilities
Accrued expenses 6,540               6,185               

Net position
Investment in capital assets 185,101           1,360               
Restricted for:

Regional Rural Development 10,664,161      -                       
Child Care 482,018           -                       

Unrestricted 19,325,078      31,075,658      

Total net position 30,656,358$    31,077,018$    
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2021 2020

Operating revenues
Interest income on loans 858,311$       754,077$       
Dividend income 40,000           105,544         
Other 90,305           46,445           

988,616         906,066         

Operating expenses
General and administrative 329,084         391,698         
Depreciation expense 18,311           2,378
Provision for losses (change in allowance) 1,107,211      7,163,963      

1,454,606      7,558,039      

Operating income (loss) (465,990)        (6,651,973)     

Nonoperating revenue
Interest income on deposits and investments 45,330           88,177           

Transfers
Bank of North Dakota -                     15,000,000    

Change in net position (420,660)        8,436,204      

Net position, beginning of year 31,077,018    22,640,814    

Net position, end of year 30,656,358$  31,077,018$  
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2021 2020
Operating activities

Other receipts 90,305$            46,445$            
Payments to suppliers (329,439) (399,349)          

Net cash  provided (used) by operating activities (239,134)          (352,904)          

Investing activities
Interest received on cash and cash equivalents and loans 559,916            887,937            
Purchase of capital assets (203,412)          -                       
Purchase of equity investments -                       (8,368,206)       
Proceeds from the sale of equity investments -                       386,792            
Disbursements on business loans (5,356,354)       (3,201,663)       
Principal payments received on business loans 5,252,145         2,816,729         

Net cash provided (used) by Investing Activities 252,295            (7,478,411)       

Non-Cash financing activity
Transfer -                       15,000,000       

Net change in cash and cash equivalents 13,161              7,168,685         

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 19,640,826       12,472,141       

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 19,653,987$     19,640,826$     

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash
Provided by operating activities
Operating income (loss) (465,990)$        (6,651,973)$     
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)

to net cash provided (used) by operating activities
Depreciation 18,311              2,378                
Provision for loan losses (490,195)          473,415            
Provision for equity investment losses 1,597,406         6,690,548         
Provision interest receivable losses -                       -                       
Reclassification of interest and dividend income (898,311)          (859,621)          

Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accrued expense (355)                 (7,651)              

Net cash  provided (used) by operating activities (239,134)$        (352,904)$        
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
Organization and Nature of Activities 
 
The North Dakota Development Fund, Inc. (the Corporation) was established pursuant to Chapter 
10-30.3 of the North Dakota Century Code as amended by the passage of Senate Bill 2058 during the 
1991 legislative session. The Corporation is a statewide nonprofit development corporation with the 
authority to take equity positions in; to provide loans to; or to use other innovative financing 
mechanisms to provide capital for new or expanding primary sector businesses in North Dakota or 
relocating to North Dakota. 
 
The Corporation uses funds to report on its financial position and the results of its operations. Fund 
accounting is designed to demonstrate legal compliance and to aid financial management by 
segregating transactions related to certain corporate functions or activities. 
 
The following activities are used by the Corporation: 
 
Development Fund 
 
The Development Fund is used to account for fund investments, including equity positions, loans, loan 
guarantees, and other innovative financing mechanisms for new or expanding primary sector 
businesses in North Dakota or relocating to North Dakota. 
 
Regional Rural Development Revolving Loan Fund 
 
The Regional Rural Development Revolving Loan Fund is used to account for fund investments 
including equity positions, loans, loan guarantees, or debt financing on a matching basis to new or 
expanding primary sector businesses in rural areas. 
 
Small Business Technology Investment Fund 
 
The Small Business Technology Fund is used to provide matching investments to startup 
technology-based businesses. 
 
Child Care Fund 
 
The Child Care Fund is used to account for fund investments including loans and loan guarantees for 
new or expanding child-care facilities in North Dakota. 
 
Venture Capital Loan Program 
 
The Venture Capital Loan Program is used to provide flexible financing through debt and equity 
investments for new or expanding businesses in the state of North Dakota. 
 
The Corporation may form additional corporations, partnerships or other forms of business associations 
in order to further its mission. 
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The Director of the Department of Commerce Division of the Economic Development and Finance shall 
appoint the Chief Executive Officer of the Corporation. All investments, contracts, partnerships, limited 
liability companies, and business transactions of the Corporation are the responsibility of the Chief 
Executive Officer and the eight-member Board of Directors, who are appointed by the Governor. 
 
Reporting Entity 
 
In accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statements, the Corporation 
should include all component units over which the Corporation exercises such aspects as (1) 
appointing a voting majority of an organization�s governing body and (2) has the ability to impose its will 
on that organization or (3) the potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or 
impose specific burdens on the Corporation. GASB further defined reporting units as a legally separate, 
tax exempt affiliated organization that meet all of the following criteria: 
 

 The economic resources of the organization entirely or almost entirely directly benefit the 
Corporation or its constituents, and 

 The Corporation or its component units are entitled to or can otherwise access, a majority of the 
economic resources of the organization, and 

 The economic resources that the Corporation is entitled to, or can otherwise access, are 
significant to the Corporation. 
 

Based upon criteria set forth in GASB, no organizations were determined to be part of the reporting 
entity. The Corporation is included as part of the primary government of the State of North Dakota�s 
reporting entity. 
 
Basis of Accounting 
 
The Corporation is presented in the accompanying financial statements as a proprietary fund type � an 
enterprise fund. 
 
An enterprise fund is used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar 
to private business enterprises, where the intent is that costs of providing goods or services to the 
general public or other funds on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user 
charges. The Corporation operates primarily with appropriations from the general fund of the State of 
North Dakota. 
 
As a proprietary fund type, the Corporation accounts for its transactions using the accrual basis of 
accounting. Revenues are recognized for its transactions when they are earned, and expenses are 
recognized when they are incurred. 
 
Revenue and Expense Recognition 
 
The Corporation presents its revenues and expenses as operating or non-operating based on 
recognition definitions from GASB. Operating activities are those activities that are necessary and 
essential to the mission of the Corporation. Operating revenues include all charges to customers, 
research contracts and grants, dividends earned on equity investments and interest earned on loans. 
Revenues from non-exchange transactions and state appropriations that represent subsidies or gifts to 
the Corporation, as well as investment income, are considered non-operating since these are either 
investing, capital or noncapital financing activities. Operating expenses are all expense transactions 
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incurred other than those related to investing, capital or noncapital financing activities. Revenues 
received for capital financing activities, as well as related expenses, are considered neither operating 
nor non-operating activities and are presented after non-operating activities on the accompanying 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position. 
 
Concentration of Credit Risk 
 
Loans receivable consist primarily of loans to new or expanding businesses in North Dakota or 
relocating businesses to North Dakota. The Corporation performs credit evaluations and maintains a 
security interest until related loans are collected. 
 
Cash Equivalents 
 
The Corporation considers all highly liquid investments purchased with maturity of three months or less 
to be cash equivalents. 
 
Equity Investments 
 
The Corporation records its equity investments at cost adjusted for other than temporary impairment as 
determined by the Board of Directors. The other than temporary impairment of equity investments is 
included in fund equity. Realization of the carrying value of these investments is subject to future 
developments inherent in such investments (see Note 4). 
 
Among the factors considered in determining whether an other than temporary impairment of an 
investment has occurred are the cost of the investment, development since the acquisition of the 
investment, the financial condition and operating results of the issuer, the long-term potential of the 
business of the issuer, and other factors generally pertinent to the valuation of investments. The 
Development Fund has relied on financial data of investees and, in many instances, on estimates by 
the management company and of the investee company as to the potential effect of future 
developments. 
 
Expense Allocation 
 
The Development Fund pays all expenses of the Corporation. 
 
Use of Estimates 
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported 
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those 
estimates. Material estimates that are particularly susceptible to significant change in the near-term 
relate to the determination of the allowance for loan losses and valuation of equity investments. 
 
Capital Assets and Depreciation 
 
All capital assets are recorded in the accompanying financial statements at cost. Donated capital 
assets are stated at acquisition value at the time of donation. Equipment with a cost greater than 
$5,000 is capitalized and reported in the accompanying financial statements. The Corporation's capital 
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assets are being depreciated on a straight-line basis over estimated useful life of 8 years. 
 
Loans 
 
Loans are reported at their outstanding unpaid principal adjusted for write-offs and the allowance for 
loan losses. 
 
Interest income is accrued on the unpaid principal balance. The accrual of interest on loans is 
discontinued at the time the loan is 90 to 120 days delinquent unless the credit is well secured and in 
process of collection. Loans are placed on non-accrual or charged-off at an earlier date if collection of 
principal or interest is doubtful. All current year interest accrued but not collected for loans that are 
placed on non-accrual or charged off is reversed against interest income. All prior year interest accrued 
but not collected is charged-off against the allowance for loan losses. The interest on these loans is 
accounted for on the cash-basis or cost-recovery method, until qualifying for return to accrual. Loans 
are returned to accrual status when all principal and interest amounts contractually due are brought 
current and future payments are reasonably assured. 
 
The Corporation has determined that the accounting for nonrefundable fees and costs associated with 
originating or acquiring loans does not have a material effect on their financial statements. As such, 
these fees and costs have been recognized during the period they are collected and incurred, 
respectively. 
 
Allowance for Loan Losses 
 
The allowance for loan losses is established as losses are estimated to have occurred through a 
provision for loan losses charged to earnings. Loan losses are charged against the allowance when 
management believes the uncollectibility of a loan balance is confirmed. Subsequent recoveries, if any, 
are credited to a recovery account. 
 
The allowance for loan losses is evaluated on a regular basis by management and is based upon 
management�s periodic review of the collectability of the loans in light of historical experience, the 
nature and volume of the loan portfolio, adverse situations that may affect the borrower�s ability to 
repay, estimated value of any underlying collateral and prevailing economic conditions. This evaluation 
is inherently subjective as it requires estimates that are susceptible to significant revision as more 
information becomes available. 
 
A loan is considered impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable that the 
Corporation will be unable to collect the scheduled payments of principal or interest when due 
according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement. Factors considered by management in 
determining impairment include payment status, collateral value, and the probability of collecting 
scheduled principal and interest payments when due. Loans that experience insignificant payment 
delays and payment shortfalls generally are not classified as impaired. Management determines the 
significance of payment delays and payment shortfalls on a case-by-case basis, taking into 
consideration all of the circumstances surrounding the loan and the borrower�s prior payment record, 
and the amount of the shortfall in relation to the principal and interest owed. Impairment is measured on 
a loan-by-loan basis by either the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loan�s 
effective interest rate, the loan�s obtainable market price, or the fair value of the collateral if the loan is 
collateral dependent. The Corporation separately identifies individual loans for impairment disclosures 
by rating them on a scale of 1 to 6. 



2021 North Dakota Development Fund 2021 North Dakota Development Fund

North Dakota Department of Commerce 24

FINANCIALS

NORTH DAKOTA DEVELOPMENT FUND, INC 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED 

JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 
 
 

 
- 15 - 

Restricted Resources 
 
It is the North Dakota Development Fund, Inc.�s policy to first apply restricted resources when an 
expense is incurred for which both restricted and unrestricted resources are available. 
 
Change in Accounting Principle 
 
The Corporation implemented GASB Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities in the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2021. 
 
Reclassifications 
 
Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior year financial statements in order for them to 
conform to the current year presentations. 
 
NOTE 2 DEPOSITS 
 
The Corporation is required to maintain its deposits at the Bank of North Dakota (a related party). As of 
June 30, 2021, the Corporation had the following: 
 

Less
Bank Than

Balance 1 Year
Cash 
Bank of North Dakota 19,653,987$ 19,653,987$  

 
As of June 30, 2020, the Corporation had the following: 
 

Less
Bank Than

Balance 1 Year
Cash 
Bank of North Dakota 19,640,826$ 19,640,826$  

 
Interest Rate Risk 
 
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates of investments will adversely affect the fair 
value of the investments. 
 
Custodial and Concentration of Credit Risk 
 
For deposits and investments, the custodial credit risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository 
financial institution, the Corporation will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in 
possession of an outside party. The Corporation�s deposits are uncollateralized. All of the Corporation�s 
deposits are with the Bank of North Dakota. 
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NOTE 3 EQUITY INVESTMENTS 
 
Equity investments in business concerns as of June 30, 2021 and 2020 are as follows: 
  

2021 2020
Development fund venture capital 500,000$            500,000$          
Valuation allowance - other than temporary impairment (250,000)             (250,000)           

Equity investments, net of allowance 250,000$            250,000$          

 
Among the factors considered in determining whether an other than temporary impairment of an 
investment has occurred are the cost of the investment, development since the acquisition of the 
investment, the financial condition and operating results of the issuer, the long-term potential of the 
business of the issuer, and other factors generally pertinent to the valuation of investments. The 
Development Fund has relied on financial data of investees and, in many instances, on estimates by 
the management company and of the investee company as to the potential effect of future 
developments. 
 
The Corporation acquired its investment by direct purchase from the issuer under investment 
representations, and the Board of Directors valued the securities on the premise that they may not be 
sold without registration under the Securities Act of 1933. The price of securities purchased was 
determined by direct negotiation between the Corporation and the seller. 
 
Changes in the valuation allowance for equity investments as of June 30, 2021 and 2020 are as 
follows: 
 

2021 2020
Balance, beginning of year 250,000$            2,871,812$       
Provision for equity investment losses -                          6,532,233         
Transfers -                          (9,154,045)        

Balance, end of year 250,000$            250,000$          
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NOTE 4 LOANS RECEIVABLE 
 
Loans receivable at June 30, 2021 and 2020 are as follows: 
 

2021 2020
Development  Fund 13,709,900$      14,583,491$       
Regional rural development revolving loan fund 5,921,706          6,142,975           
Small business technology fund 50,000               50,000                
Child care program 1,790,059          2,009,573           
Development fund venture capital 8,487,664          7,069,079           

29,959,329        29,855,118         
Allowance for loan losses (19,541,729)       (18,804,961)        

Loans receivable, net of allowance for losses 10,417,600        11,050,157         

Less: current portion of loans receivable 3,156,924 4,422,932           

Loans receivable, net of current portion 7,260,676$        6,627,225$         
 

 
Changes in the allowance for loan losses as of June 30, 2021 and 2020 are as follows: 
 

2021 2020
Balance, beginning of year 18,804,961$      9,335,903$         
Provision for loan losses (reserve decrease) 1,107,211          315,013              
Transfers -                         9,154,045           
Write-offs (370,443)            -                          

Balance, end of year 19,541,729$      18,804,961$       
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NOTE 5 EQUIPMENT 
 
A statement of changes in fixed assets for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 are as follows: 
 

Balance 
6/30/20 Additions Deletions

Balance 
6/30/21

Furniture and equipment 37,539$    -$              (37,539)$  -$               
Computer software 48,345 203,412 (48,345) 203,412     
Accumulated depreciation (84,524) (18,311) 84,524 (18,311)      

1,360$      185,101$  (1,360)$    185,101$   

Balance 
6/30/19 Additions Deletions

Balance 
6/30/20

Furniture and equipment 37,539$    -$              -$             37,539$     
Computer software 48,345      -                -               48,345       
Accumulated depreciation (82,146)     (2,378)       -               (84,524)      

3,738$      (2,378)$     -$             1,360$       
 

NOTE 6 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 
 
Development Fund 
 
The Board of Directors has approved equity investments, loans, grants and guaranty of collections at 
June 30, 2021 for which funds have not been disbursed or written agreements entered into in the 
approximate amount of $875,054. 
 
Regional Rural Development Revolving Loan Fund 
 
The Board of Directors has approved equity investments, loans, and guaranty of collections at June 30, 
2021 for which funds have not been disbursed or written agreements entered into in the approximate 
amount of $675,000. 
 
Child Care Loan Fund 
 
The Board of Directors has approved equity investments, loans, and guaranty of collections at June 30, 
2021 for which funds have not been disbursed or written agreements entered into in the approximate 
amount of $4,484. 
 
Development Fund Venture Capital Fund 
 
The Board of Directors has approved equity investments, loans, and guaranty of collections at June 30, 
2021 for which funds have not been disbursed or written agreements entered into in the approximate 
amount of $228,824. 
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NOTE 7 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
 
The financial statements of the North Dakota Development Fund, Inc. include loans receivables in 
entities partially owned by members of the Board of Directors. The related party loans receivables have 
a balance of $1,514,256 and $814,906 as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. 
 
NOTE 8 RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
North Dakota Development Fund, Inc. is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, 
damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural 
disasters. The following are funds/pools established by the State for risk management issues: 
 
The 1995 Legislative Session established the Risk Management Fund (RMF), an internal service fund, 
to provide a self-insurance vehicle for funding the liability exposures of state agencies resulting from the 
elimination of the state's sovereign immunity. The RMF manages the tort liability of the state, its 
agencies' employees, and the University System. All state agencies participate in the RMF and their 
fund contribution was determined using a projected cost allocation approach. The statutory liability of 
the State is limited to a total of $250,000 per person and $1,000,000 per occurrence. 
 
The Corporation participates in the North Dakota Fire and Tornado Fund and the State Bonding Fund 
through the policies of the North Dakota Commerce Department. North Dakota Commerce Department 
pays an annual premium to the Fire and Tornado Fund to cover property damage to personal property. 
Replacement cost coverage is provided by estimating replacement cost in consultation with the Fire 
and Tornado Fund. The Fire and Tornado Fund is reinsured by a third-party insurance carrier for losses 
in excess of one million dollars per occurrence during a twelve-month period. The State Bonding Fund 
currently provides the Agency with blanket fidelity bond coverage in the amount of $2,000,000. The 
State Bonding Fund does not currently charge any premium for this coverage. 
 
The Corporation participates in the North Dakota Workforce Safety and Insurance, (WSI) an Enterprise 
Fund of the State of North Dakota. WSI is a state insurance fund and a "no fault" insurance system 
covering the State's employers and employees financed by premiums assessed to employers. The 
premiums are available for the payment of claims to employees injured during employment. 
 
There have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage from the prior year and settled claims 
resulting from these risks have not exceeded insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. 
 
NOTE 9 TRANSFERS 
 
During the year ended June 30, 2020, the North Dakota Development Fund received a transfer of 
$15,000,000 from the Bank of North Dakota. Per House Bill 1014, the North Dakota Development Fund 
used a portion of these proceeds to purchase venture capital assets from the Bank of North Dakota. 
 
NOTE 10 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
 
The corporation approved three loans after year end totaling $5,550,000 that have not been fully 
advanced. Subsequent events have been evaluated through December 3, 2021, which is the date 
these financial statements were available to be issued. 
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INDEPEDENT AUDITOR�S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT 
AUDITING STANDARDS 

 
 
Governor of North Dakota 
The Legislative Assembly 
 
Board of Directors 
North Dakota Development Fund, Inc 
Bismarck, North Dakota 
 
 
We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of 
North Dakota Development Fund, Inc, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021, and the 
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Corporation�s basic 
financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated December 3, 2021. We 
expressed an adverse opinion on the remaining fund information, as the fiduciary net position 
was omitted from the North Dakota Development Fund, Inc.�s financial statements. 
 
Internal Control over Financial Reporting 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the 
Corporation�s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our 
opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Corporation�s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on 
the effectiveness of the Corporation�s internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity�s financial statements will not be prevented 
or detected and corrected on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies may exist that have not been identified. We did identify certain 
deficiencies in internal control, described in the accompanying schedule of findings and 
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responses as items 2021-001 and 2021-002 that we consider to be to be material weaknesses.  
 
Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Corporation�s financial statements 
are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which 
could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements.  However, providing an 
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, 
we do not express such an opinion.  The results of our tests disclosed no instances of 
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing 
Standards. 
 
North Dakota Development Fund Inc.�s Response to Findings 
 
North Dakota Development Fund, Inc.�s responses to the findings identified in our audit is 
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and responses. North Dakota Development 
Fund, Inc.�s responses were not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the 
financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.  
 
Purpose of this Report 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Corporation�s 
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other 
purpose. 
 
 
 
BRADY, MARTZ & ASSOCIATES, P.C. 
BISMARCK, NORTH DAKOTA 
 
December 3, 2021
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2021-001: Preparation of Financial Statements 
 
Criteria 
An appropriate system of internal controls requires the Corporation to prepare financial 
statements in compliance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 
 
Condition 
The Corporation�s personnel prepare periodic financial information for internal use that meets 
the needs of management and the board. However, the Corporation does not prepare financial 
statements, including accompanying note disclosures, as required by accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. The Corporation has elected to have the 
auditors assist in the preparation of the financial statements and notes.  
 
Cause 
The Corporation elected to not allocate resources for the preparation of the financial statements. 
 
Effect 
There is an increased risk of material misstatements to the Corporation�s financial statements. 
 
Recommendations 
We recommend the Corporation consider the additional risk of having the auditors assist in the 
preparation of the financial statements and note disclosures and consider preparing them in the 
future. As a compensating control the entity should establish an internal control policy to 
document the annual review of the financial statements and schedules and to review a financial 
statement disclosure checklist. 
 
Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Actions 
Since it is not cost-effective for an organization our size to have staff to prepare audit-ready 
financial statements, we have chosen to hire Brady, Martz & Associates, P.C., a public 
accounting firm, to prepare the audit financial statements as part of their annual audit of North 
Dakota Development Fund, Inc. 
 
 
2021-002: Proposition of Journal Entries 
 
Criteria 
The Corporation is required to maintain internal controls at a level where underlying support for 
general ledger accounts can be developed and a determination can be made that the general 
ledger accounts are properly reflected in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America (GAAP). 
 
Condition 
During our audit, adjusting entries to the financial statements were proposed in order to properly 
reflect the financial statements in accordance with GAAP. 
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Cause 
The Corporation�s internal controls have not been designed to address the specific training 
needs required of its personnel to identify the adjustments necessary to properly reflect the 
financial statements in accordance with GAAP. 
 
Effect 
The Corporation�s financial statements were materially misstated prior to adjustments detected 
as a result of audit procedures. 
 
Recommendation 
Accounting personnel will need to determine the proper balance in each general ledger account 
prior to the audit. 
 
Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Actions 
The material misstatements found this year were a one-time transaction needed to bring an off-
balance sheet item on-balance sheet. The NDDF transitioned to a new accounting system and 
determined it was the adequate time to make key adjusting entries that will streamline 
processes going forward. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR�S SPECIFIC COMMENTS REQUESTED BY THE 
NORTH DAKOTA LEGISLATIVE AUDIT AND FISCAL REVIEW COMMITTEE 

 
 
Governor of North Dakota 
The Legislative Assembly 
 
Board of Directors 
North Dakota Development Fund, Inc 
Bismarck, North Dakota 
 
 
The Legislative Audit and Fiscal Review Committee require that certain items be addressed by 
independent certified public accountants performing audits of State agencies.  The items and 
our responses regarding the June 30, 2021 audit of the North Dakota Development Fund, Inc 
are as follows: 
 
Audit Report Communications: 
 
1. What type of opinion was issued on the financial statements? 

 
Unmodified and Adverse. The financial information for the New Venture Capital Program 
Fund, which is the Fund we expressed an adverse opinion on, was omitted as this 
information is reported in the Bank of North Dakota�s financial statements. 

 
2. Was there compliance with statutes, laws, rules and regulations under which the agency 

was created and is functioning? 
 

Yes. 
 
3. Was internal control adequate and functioning effectively? 
 

Yes. 
 
4. Were there any indications of lack of efficiency in financial operations and management of 

the agency? 
 

No. 
 

5. Was action taken on prior audit findings and recommendations? 
 
No, please see findings 2021-001 and 2021-002 noted on the Schedule of Findings and 
Responses. 
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6. Was a management letter issued?  If so, provide a summary below, including any 

recommendations and the management responses. 
 

Yes. We recommend management formally document their review process of bank 
reconciliations.  
 
Audit Committee Communications: 

 
1. Identify any significant changes in accounting policies, any management conflicts of interest, 

any contingent liabilities, or any significant unusual transactions. 
 
None 

 
2. Identify any significant accounting estimates, the process used by management to formulate 

the accounting estimates, and the basis for the auditor�s conclusions regarding the 
reasonableness of those estimates. 
 
The most sensitive estimates affecting the financial statements include the allowances for 
uncollectible loans receivable and valuation allowances for equity investments. 
 
The allowance for loan losses is evaluated on a regular basis by management and is based 
upon management�s periodic review of the collectability of the loans in light of historical 
experience, the nature and volume of the loan portfolio, adverse situations that may affect 
the borrower�s ability to repay, estimated value of any underlying collateral and prevailing 
economic conditions. This evaluation is inherently subjective as it requires estimates that 
are susceptible to significant revision as more information becomes available. 
 
Among the factors considered in determining whether an other than temporary impairment 
of an investment has occurred are the cost of the investment, development since the 
acquisition of the investment, the financial condition and operating results of the issuer, the 
long-term potential of the business of the issuer, and other factors generally pertinent to the 
valuation of investments. The Development Fund has relied on financial data of investees 
and, in many instances, on estimates by the management company and of the investee 
company as to the potential effect of future developments. 
 
Our opinion on the reasonableness of these estimates is based on the testing performed 
during our audit procedures. Our procedures included assessing the risk assigned by the 
Development Fund to the loans and equity investments, evaluation of the past history of 
these amounts, discussion with management, and review of recent information regarding 
the loans and investments. 

 
3. Identify any significant audit adjustments. 

 
Significant adjustments were made to reconcile beginning equity, to adjust interest 
receivable and interest income and to adjust the allowance for doubtful accounts. 
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4. Identify any disagreements with management, whether or not resolved to the auditor�s 
satisfaction, relating to a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter that could be 
significant to the financial statements. 
 
None. 
 

5. Identify any serious difficulties encountered in performing the audit. 
 
None. 
 

6. Identify any major issues discussed with management prior to retention. 
 
None. 
 

7. Identify any management consultations with other accountants about auditing and 
accounting matters. 
 
None. 
 

8. Identify any high-risk technology systems critical to operations based on the auditor�s overall 
assessment of the importance of the system to the agency and its mission, or whether any 
exceptions identified in the six report questions to be addressed by auditors are directly 
related to the operations of an information technology system. 
 
Based on the audit procedures performed, the North Dakota Development Fund, Inc�s 
critical information technology system is SPARAK and iCore. There were no exceptions 
identified that were directly related to this application.  

 
This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Governor, Legislative Audit and 
Fiscal Review Committee, Board of Directors, and management, and is not intended to be and 
should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties 
 
 
 
BRADY, MARTZ & ASSOCIATES, P.C. 
BISMARCK, NORTH DAKOTA 
 
December 3, 2021 
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2022 ANNUAL REPORT

North Dakota Department of Commerce 
Tourism and Marketing Division Report on 
Marketing North Dakota and the Travel 
and Tourism Industry

Aerial view of the Little Yellowstone Campground on Sheyenne River Valley National Scenic Byway.



YEAR IN REVIEW & RESEARCH

The Tourism & Marketing Division contracted three major studies in 2022 to gain insights into the national perception of the 
state, advertising effectiveness, and data to make market decisions for workforce recruitment. 

Dear Friends, 

Throughout this report, you will fi nd the results of our collective and 
collaborative work. While this report focuses primarily on tourism, 
the work to elevate the image of North Dakota is drawing eyes, 
suitcases, and resumes, and showcasing all the advantages our state 
offers for visitors and lifestyle.  

Trimming down the data we included has not been easy. Our need to 
understand the results we are netting, and how we can provide value 
and a strong return on investment to you and all the citizens of North 
Dakota is a priority we take seriously. 

Research shows our marketing drove 1.4 million new trips to North 
Dakota and dramatically elevated our state’s image as a good 
place to live, start a career, start a business, attend college, buy a 
vacation home and retire. A 2022 study also confi rms what may 
seem obvious; most people visit before they move. Of recent drivers 
who transferred their licenses to North Dakota, 76% had visited the 
state prior to moving.   

A 2022 national perception study assessing Americans' awareness of North Dakota, showed 
that perceptions of the state were modest and largely driven by a lack of familiarity. Only 
22% had lived in or visited and the top words associated with North Dakota were cold, rural 
and remote. This may not seem like something you would want to include in a tourism annual 
report, but I believe it illustrates the importance of investing in marketing. We need to show 
people what North Dakota really is… and the most effi cient way to accomplish that is through 
destination marketing.  

In addition to marketing, our tourism operations team, which now includes a dedicated tourism 
business development manager, is focused on expanding and improving the offerings found 
statewide.  Offerings that attract visitors, workforce and allow us all to enjoy life in North Dakota. 

Thanks for your support and interest,  

Sara Otte Coleman

Research

A MA JORIT Y OF NORTH 
DAKOTA' S  NEW RESIDENTS 
RELOCATED TO THE STATE 

BECAUSE OF WORK

48% EMPLOYMENT 
MOTIVATED

EVERY $1 INVESTED IN
ADVERT IS ING GENERATED $34 
IN DIRECT V IS ITOR SPENDING 

AND $3 IN TAX REVENUE

$34 RETURN ON        
INVESTMENT

NORTH DAKOTA CONTINUES 
TO BE AN UNFAMIL IAR 

DEST INATION FOR MOST 
AMERICANS

47% FAMILIAR TO
VERY FAMILIAR

North Dakota Department of Commerce1

of new residents
visited North Dakota
prior to moving to
the state

76%

Sara Otte Coleman presents at the 2022 Travel Industry Conference in Grand Forks. 



2.1%

2.2%

1.8%

7.6%

2.0%

2.7%

9.1%

44.1%

4.0%

2.6%

TOURISM IMPACTS STATEWIDE
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According to the 2021 Tourism Satellite Account, North Dakota counties had an average increase of 23.6% in visitor 
spending from 2020. Travel and tourism benefi ts every county in North Dakota, creating jobs, generating sales across 
dozens of sectors and improving your quality of life.

Top Origin States for Travel to North Dakota

Rank Location

1 Minnesota

2 South Dakota

3 Montana

4 Wisconsin

5 Texas

6 Illinois

7 California

8 Washington

9 Colorado

10 Arizona

$400-850M

$100-400M

$36-100M

$8-16M

$4-8M

$2-4M

Under $2M

$16-36M

V I S I T O R  S P E N D I N G  B Y  C O U N T Y

North Dakota partners with Arrivalist, a geo-location intelligence company, for data on U.S. adult road trips to the state. 
Arrivalist sources information from mobile devices and GPS providers in order to report travel-specifi c data including a 
consumer’s entire journey to, within and back from a destination. 



North Dakota’s advertising presence in 2022 was signifi cantly 
reduced following the unprecedented investment in 2021. As a result, 
ad reach declined in most mediums and markets, and year-over-year 
losses were seen in website traffi c and traditional inquiries. Still, the 
2022 campaign was one of the most effi cient to date, based on video 
completions, arrival and stay lift measured by Arrivalist, and website 
conversions. 

I N T E N D  T O  T R A V E L  M E T R I C S

SESSIONS
2,070,760
3.91% decrease

USERS
1,942,019
3.61% decrease

PAGEVIEWS
2,408,669

6.01% decrease

WEBSITE TRAFFIC

27,247 
INQUIRES

1% decrease

TRADITIONAL
INQUIRIES

ADVERTIS ING & MARKETING

MONTHLY 
USERS

1,000+
PAGEVIEWS
42,000+

TRAVEL GUIDE EBOOK

NORTH DAKOTA TRAVEL  INDUSTRY

North Dakota Department of Commerce3

PRIMARY CAMPAIGN
The North Dakota Tourism advertising campaign’s 
PRIMARY GOAL IS TO INCREASE AWARENESS 
OF THE STATE AS A TRAVEL DESTINATION, 
INCREASE QUALIFIED TRAFFIC TO THE 
WEBSITE, REFERRALS TO PARTNERS, AND 
PROVIDE THE TOPOFFUNNEL INSPIRATION 
TO ENCOURAGE A BOOKED TRIP TO NORTH 
DAKOTA. Primary campaign advertising reaches 
the regional market including Minnesota, Wisconsin, 
Illinois, the Denver DMA, North Dakota, and 
Manitoba and Saskatchewan, Canada.

L e g e n d a r y N D . c o m

Spur your group's imaginations with a little time travel in North
Dakota. Our rich history comes to life at historic sites and museums
throughout the state where groups can encounter the region’s First
Nations, explorers, prehistoric fossils, the old west and much more.
Visit us online to start planning your next itinerary. 

N D t o u r i s m . c o m / g r o u p t r a v e l

Be Fascinated.

North Dakota Heritage Center and 
State Museum, Bismarck

Spur your group's imaginations with a little time travel in North
Dakota. Our rich history comes to life at historic sites and museums
throughout the state where groups can encounter the region’s First
Nations, explorers, prehistoric fossils, the old west and much more.
Visit us online to start planning your next itinerary. 

N D t o u r i s m . c o m / g r o u p t r a v e l

Follow your curiosity this year, not the crowds. Theodore Roosevelt 
National Park in North Dakota is the place to find bison and wild 
horses, uncrowded trailheads, and more vibrant colors than other 
Badlands — all in wide-open spaces without the waiting lines. 
Visit us online to plan your adventure.

L e g e n d a r y N D . c o m

Be Inspired.



FUN, FRIENDLY CITIES
Grand Forks, Fargo and other cities and towns throughout the state offer vibrant downtowns, inviting 

accommodations, shopping, dining and more. Look for treasures in many one-of-a-kind boutique shops filled with 

fashions and home decor or visit popular brand retailers and big-box stores. Enjoy events and attractions like street 

fairs, festivals, the Town Square Farmers Market in Grand Forks or live music playing in Fargo’s Broadway Square.

LOCAL FLAVORS
Make your holiday a culinary adventure. From downtowns to small towns, our chefs, bakers and confectioners 

have something delicious for you. Our farm-to-table restaurants, steakhouses, coffee shops, wineries, craft 

breweries and many more eateries are ready to serve.

ENTERTAINMENT AND EVENTS

B R E A K  F R E E
to the uncrowded landscapes and vibrant 

cities of North Dakota. Let us serve you 

our warm hospitality with inviting hotels 

and new restaurants, fun events and 

entertainment, and stores full of unique 

finds and popular brands. Visit us online

to plan your escape.

The calendar is full of favorite summer and fall events and festivals. Join us for big concerts, rodeos and more. 

MEDORA MUSICAL, MEDORA   
through SEPT 10

See this musical variety show performed in 

an outdoor amphitheater amid scenic Badlands.

MANDAN RODEO DAYS, MANDAN 
JULY 2-4

Catch PRCA rodeo action, street dances,

live music and local flavors.

RED RIVER VALLEY FAIR, WEST FARGO 
JULY 8-14

Enjoy fair food, crafts and outdoor live entertainment. 

PA I D  A D V E R T I S I N G

1 - 8 0 0 - 4 3 5 - 5 6 6 3         L e g e n d a r y N D . c o mND

Camp Lone Tree at 701 Eateries, Fargo

Theodore Roosevelt National Park South Unit

Downtown shopping, Grand ForksRed River Valley Fair, West Fargo

NORTH DAKOTA STATE FAIR, MINOT 
JULY 22-30

Don’t miss grandstand events and concerts including Kid Rock, 

Cody Johnson, Elvie Shane, Will Banister, Old Dominion, 

Koe Wetzel & Nelly and Sam Hunt.

NORTH DAKOTA RENAISSANCE FAIRE 
WEST FARGO, AUG 13-14, 20-21

Get medieval with games, entertainment, fair food and more.

GREENWAY TAKEOVER FESTIVAL 
GRAND FORKS, SEPT 8-11

Celebrate summer with food trucks, beer gardens and live music.

NORSK HØSTFEST, MINOT 
SEPT 28-OCT 1

Experience North America’s largest Scandinavian heritage 

festival with concerts by Big and Rich, Lady A, 

Toby Keith and Brantley Gilbert.

SPACIOUS OUTDOORS
Explore scenic drives, hiking trails and kayaking waters in 

North Dakota. Don’t miss our beautifully uncrowded Theodore 

Roosevelt National Park with its uniquely multi-colored layers 

of clay, sandstone, red “scoria” rock and black coal veins. 

Favorite places closer to Manitoba include the International 

Peace Garden, Pembina Gorge State Recreation Area, White 

Horse Hill National Game Preserve and many state parks.

Welcome 
Neighbours.
Welcome 
Neighbours.

CALL OR VISIT US 
ONLINE FOR YOUR 
FREE TRAVEL GUIDE.

BISMARCK
MEDORA

MINOT

WILLISTON

FARGO

GRAND
FORKS

TV/RADIO
184,242,890
A 8.8% reduction in reach 

due to smaller budget 
resulted in 11.9% fewer 

vanity URL conversions to 
website.

OUT-OF-HOME
150,658,043

PRINT
12,412,638

Print reach was maintained 
from 2021 to 2022 and 
as a result, inquiries from 

magazines increased 18%.

A 41% reduction in OOH 
impressions due to fewer 

placements.

ND

SOCIAL MEDIA
11,866,529

32% fewer social 
impressions led to a 13.6% 
decrease in social traffi c to 

the website.

ND

DIGITAL
108,387,333

A 65.4% reduction in 
impressions, but most effi cient 

digital campaign to date.

R E A C H

ND

North Dakota Department of Commerce 4

NICHE CAMPAIGN
Fishing, hunting, golf, motorcycling and 
history are travel niches in which specialized 
marketing is expanded outside of near borders and 
into U.S. secondary markets including South Dakota, 
Montana, Nevada and Arizona.

IMPRESSIONS

423 MILLION
VIDEO COMPLET IONS

15.22 MILLION
CONVERSIONS TO WEBSITE

250,000+
PAID SEARCH TRAFF IC

INCREASED 23.1%
TRAVEL  GUIDES DISTR IBUTED

250,000+

CAMPAIGN RESULTS:



Public and media relations efforts continued to elevate North Dakota’s image through proactive outreach and storytelling 
garnering positive media coverage and increasing awareness.

PUBL IC & MEDIA REL ATIONS

Visual
Assests

324
Pinterest

Posts
88

Facebook Posts: 12Instagram: 30

Tweets: 4Instagram Reels: 6

TikTok Posts: 6

Instagram
Stories

70

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

0

5

10

15

2019 2020 2021 2022

830 732
231

2,124

Media Instances Audience Reach (Billions)

2.09 1.35 1.34

13

Earned Media Results

North Dakota Tourism extended the co-op infl uencer 
campaign, positioning North Dakota as a top travel 
destination with unforgettable, under the radar 
adventures located throughout the state. 

2022 Partner Results

Geez, Even Fargo Has Gone Upscale

North Dakota Department of Commerce5

MEDIA INSTANCES

891% INCREASE
AUDIENCE REACH THROUGH MEDIA

13+ BILLION

IMPRESSIONS

725,183
SOCIAL  MEDIA ENGAGEMENTS

80,253

2022 MEDIA COVERAGE

AUDIENCE REACH

108,800

INFLUENCER CAMPAIGN

2,124



@TravelND @NorthDakotaLegendary @NDTourism @TravelND@NorthDakota

Social media gives us worldwide platforms to showcase North Dakota. Our goals are centered around audience engagement, 
travel counseling, generating traffi c to the website, and educating residents and visitors about activities, communities, and 
attractions in our state. 

164,519

ENGAGEMENTSFOLLOWERS

1,000,535

IMPRESSIONS

223,789,835

WEB TRAFFIC

74,924

5% increase 13% decrease22% decrease22% increase

SOCIAL MEDIA

Engagements are any 
interactions the audience is 

taking with our content. They 
are a strong indicator of 
interest in North Dakota.

0

200,000

400,000

600,000

800,000

1,000,000

1,200,000
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00
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00
0
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00
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00
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2022

22%↑
South
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Engagement rate shows how often your audience is interacting with your 
content despite the size of your following. North Dakota ranks second 

compared to neighboring states.

North Dakota Ranks Second in Engagement Rate

More Highlights of 2022
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@girlof10000lakes

@riannekuhn

@mikahmey

@twisttravelmag



Travel Segment 2021 2022 +/-

State Park Visitors 1,344,741 1,135,538 -16%

National Park Visitors 826,099 698,119 -15%

Major Attractions 3,999,505 4,108,799 3%

Local Visitor Centers 52,375 49,994 -5%

Cumulative Lodging Tax $5,552,640 $7,350,904.14 32%

ND Airport Deplanements 887,804 1,023,816 15%

Canadian Border Crossing 96,219 298,463 210%

Statewide Hotel Occupancy Rate 47.7% 52.9% 11%

NORTH DAKOTA TRAVEL  INDUSTRY

BY THE NUMBERS

Since April 2020, there have been 840,027 personal bus and auto passengers entering the U.S. through North Dakota
ports-of-entry. This is down 75.4% from the previous 33 months. At just 24.6% of the pre-pandemic volume of personal entries, 
the lost Canadian visitor spending due to the pandemic and border restrictions is estimated at more than $344 million. 
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2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

CANADIAN BORDER CROSSINGS INTO NORTH DAKOTA
(Personal Vehicles)

2021 2022 +/-

$1,382,650,572 $1,520,225,611 9.53%

Accommodations/Food Services

2021 2022 +/-

$98,550,322 $121,642,968 22.09%

Arts/Entertainment/Recreation

TAXABLE SALES & PURCHASES
THROUGH 3RD QTR 2022
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For a complete list of references used to compile the data contained within this report,
please email marketing@nd.gov or call 1-800-HELLOND.

5% Paid

3% Referral
1% Display

3% Social

1% Email

46% Organic

30% Direct

12% Digital

ORIGIN OF S ITE  TRAFF IC
FOR NDtour i sm.com

Rank Location

1 North Dakota

2 Minnesota

3 Illinois

4 Wisconsin

5 Texas

6 California

7 Colorado

8 New York

9 Florida

10 Arizona

TOP LOCATIONS FOR
WEBSITE  TRAFF IC

VISITS
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International travel rebounded in 2022. In-person sales events welcomed new staff from international travel companies, resulting 
in needed training for new staff with little awareness of North Dakota.

GLOBAL MARKETING

North Dakota was added as a destination in 51 new itineraries with 
174 overnights across the seven international markets. Across all 125 
tour operators, North Dakota added 462 trips, giving North Dakota 
1,266 overnight offerings. Within these itineraries, 18 communities 
across North Dakota are featured.

187 shareable leads were generated from the nation's largest 
Global Market Place International Pow Wow (IPW), International 
Roundup (held in Fargo), and BrandUSA Travel Week in 2022, 
along with 193 leads from missions to France, the Nordic Countries 
and the United Kingdom.

We hosted 12 product development and media tours that included 
45 individuals. These media and travel trade representatives visited 
17 communities and spent 48 nights in the state.

North Dakota Tourism and the North Dakota Native Tourism Alliance 
(NDNTA) continue to collaborate to develop and promote visitation 
to tribal lands, events, and attractions. The position of NDNTA 
executive director was created and will also oversee the creation of 
the Native American Cultural Tours (NACT).

This will essentially be a tribally owned receptive tour operator.  North 
Dakota Tourism will continue to partner with the fi ve Tribal Nations 
in education and promotion of tribal lands, cultures, and history to 
travelers from near and far.

North Dakota Tourism along with the NDNTA and the fi ve Tribal 
Nations will continue to work together to create and enhance tourism 
opportunities across North Dakota and attract media and travel 
trade to showcase to the world.

The group/motorcoach industry creates tours for customers that 
want to travel to, from and within North America. 

One meeting at the American Bus Assocation resulted in a product 
development tour that visited seven communities and 18 attractions. 
This operator created an itinerary and sold this tour with four 
overnights. In 2023, 35 participants will fl y into Bismarck and visit 
four communities in North Dakota.

TR IBAL TOURISM

GROUP TRAVEL

120+
FACETOFACE 

MEEET INGS LED TO

8 NEW TOURS

8 NEW TOURS INCLUDED

WITH AN IMPACT OF

18 OVERNIGHTS

$800,000

36 COMMUNITIES

OVERNIGHTS OFFERED 
IN THE STATE WAS 

INCREASED

24%
FROM 2021,WITH A
REGIONAL MARKET

SHARE INCREASE OF

NORTH DAKOTA WAS 
FEATURED IN

96 STORIES
AND REACHED

224M READERS
AND EARNED AN 
EQUIVALENT OF

$2.4M
IN EDITORIAL  COVERAGE

19.5%
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Bus tour at the Medora Musical

Travel Week with Brand USA at Frankfurt Germany

Travel trade visits MHA Earth Lodge Village following International Round-Up



OUTDOOR MARKETING PROGRAM

Tourism and Marketing’s outdoor promotion works to introduce outdoor enthusiasts to travel worthy adventures in North 
Dakota. Efforts include paid sponsorships, media relations, social media, visitor services and consumer travel shows.

Ron Schara Productions

Jason Mitchell Outdoors

Midwest Outdoors

Ducks Unlimited

Delta Waterfowl

National Parks Magazine

Marketing Outdoor Media RelationsSport & Travel Shows

• To promote the state's outdoor 
adventure, we participate in 
consumer shows that bring our 
destinations face to face with 
potential travelers.

• There are opportunities for tourism 
partners to participate at the shows 
in person and there are options 
to distribute materials to outdoor 
enthusiasts across the upper Midwest.

• These shows have also been a place 
to meet and communicate with 
outdoor media and infl uencers.

• Commerce has been monitoring and 
studying the ROI of consumer shows 
to determine whether these shows 
create enough trips and interest to 
continue participation at the shows.

• Outdoor promotion focuses on 
garnering editorial content with 
infl uential outdoor communicators 
through their media outlets.

• Tourism and Marketing Division staff 
create and manage relationships with 
members of outdoor media groups.

• This is important because hosting the 
right media can produce huge returns 
on relatively small investments.

• Our work focuses on infl uencing 
travel media to produce media 
instances about the state that will 
motivate trips that will produce 
positive economic impacts in our 
communities.

• Sponsorships guarantee state 
outdoor messaging is being 
delivered to a broad regional & 
national audience in targeted niche 
areas.

• Many of these sponsorships include 
editorial and advertising content 
that highlight specifi c regions or 
communities that have interesting 
outdoor stories to tell.

• It is key for partners to update 
information about new trails, 
access for hunting or fi shing, and 
new recreation providers such as 
equipment rentals or guides and 
outfi tters that can attract out of state 
travelers for outdoor adventures.

1,600+
Sport show

booth attendees 
in Minnesota & 

Wisconsin

ND

24,300
Hunting & Fishing
guides distributed

by end of July 

Local partners can help welcome guests 
on product development/media trips to 
introduce media & travel infl uencers to 

attractions and communities.
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Sponsorship Partners

New tourism campaign shot taken at Devils Lake

Local Partners



North Dakota's farm and ranch legacy is well 
known, and visitors are seeking more farm 
and ranch experiences. Our AgriTourism 
development work seeks to assist farmers 
and ranchers in diversifying their operations 
to generate income through activities, 
accommodations, rentals and on-site sales.

TOURISM DEVELOPMENT

North Dakota Department of Commerce recognizes that tourism development has the potential for economic and 
sociocultural effects that will positively impact further growth in our state. As our state continues to lead innovation in 
several economic development sectors, we understand the importance of creating a better quality life for our residents by 
connecting resources to drive economic growth. In addition, we recognize the importance of developing unique tourism 
experiences that share our story with non-residents to increase tourism revenue and to bring awareness of North Dakota, 
which supports workforce talent recruitment to the state.  

The Main Street Tourism Outdoor 
Recreation Grant was offered to 
support new or expanding businesses 
that would provide new outdoor 
recreation opportunities, improve 
visitor experiences, and would 
attract visitors and increase visitor 
expenditures in North Dakota. The 
Department of Commerce awarded 
six projects Main Street Outdoor 
Recreation Grants in 2022.

THE MAIN STREET 
OUTDOOR RECREATION 

GRANT

• A dedicated tourism business developer position was created to focus on attracting 
new tourism businesses and offerings to the state by addressing identifi ed gaps. Areas 
of focus include outdoor recreation, value-added recreation, agritourism, arts, culture 
and heritage of North Dakota, venues, unique accommodations, culinary experiences, 
themed education and entertainment attractions, and other legacy projects. 

• Commerce and the Tourism and Marketing Division understand the importance of 
attracting visitors and residents to North Dakota. As a result, the Main Street Outdoor 
Recreation Grant was created to support new or expanding businesses that provide new 
outdoor recreation opportunities, improved visitor experiences, and, with an emphasis 
on attracting visitors to North Dakota communities. 

• Commerce’s Economic Development and Finance Division and the Tourism and 
Marketing Division continue to work together to establish additional fi nancial package 
opportunities for tourism business recruitment and expansion through primary sector 
certifi cation. The certifi cation allows qualifi ed tourism businesses to apply for additional 
packages to enhance profi tability.

WAS AWARDED TO S IX 
PROJECTS ACROSS THE 

STATE.  F IVE  PROJECTS OFFER 
WINTER EXPER IENCES. 

$100,000

$
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AGRITOURISM

Citizens Alley Pocket Park Ice Rink in Minot The marina at Lake Sakakawea State Park

A canola fi eld near Bowman



Tourism and Marketing staff visiting Fort Dilts State Historic Site on their 
southwest familiarization tour.

• 12,230 downloads

• Top downloaded images include formatted Teams backgrounds, Theodore Roosevelt 
National Park, Lake Sakakawea, sunfl owers, Missouri River and Pembina Gorge

• 5,461 visitors to the State Media Library 

North Dakota Tourism staff works to identify, build, and sustain strong relationships with tourism and industry partners around 
the state. They are also at-the-ready to assist partners with research, presentations, resources, content, assets, promotional 
materials, and more. North Dakota Tourism relies on partner-listed and provided attractions, events, accommodations, 
guides, visitor centers and services, and works to promote them.

The State Media Library allows for easier sharing and a boost to the visuals used across state government. It also increases 
the visuals available to partners, media and more.

medialibrary.nd.gov

PARTNER
L IST INGS ON 

WEBSITE

2,600+

RETURNING 
VIS ITORS 

INCREASED

PARTNER
L IST INGS IN 

TRAVEL  GUIDE

1,600+
REFERRALS 

TO PARTNER 
WEBSITES

244,000+

PARTNER ENGAGEMENT

COMMERCE NEWSLET TER HAD AN 
ENGAGEMENT RATE OF 60% IN 
2022.  TOTAL  SUBSCRIBERS HAD A 
GROWTH OF 99.51% OVER THE PAST 
12 MONTHS WITH OVER 20,000 
SUBSCRIBERS.

A TOTAL  OF 15 PARTNERS 
PART ICIPATED IN NINE 
DIFFERENT COOP ADVERT IS ING 
OPPORTUNIT IES . 

15

MORE THAN 60 TOURISM 
PROFESSIONALS AT TENDED 
THE 2022 TOURISM INDUSTRY 
MARKET ING SUMMIT. 

60

MORE THAN 200 TOURISM 
PROFESSIONALS AT TENDED 
THE 2022 TRAVEL  INDUSTRY 
CONFERENCE IN GRAND FORKS.

200

STATE MEDIA L IBRARY
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STATE AGENCY 
USERS ACCESSED 
S ITE  INCREASED

325%

ASSETS
UPLOADED

15K+39%

DOWNLOADABLE
ASSETS

94K+

2022 Highlights



The Tourism & Marketing Division produced hunting and fi shing information sheets to fulfi ll inquiries in 2022. Information 
pieces were available for distribution in visitor centers, used to fulfi ll inquiries, and placed in rest areas throughout the 
state. Commerce also creates and manages e-news blasts, website articles and content on NDtourism.com. 

WE ARE AVAILABLE TO VISITORS AROUND THE WORLD

VISITOR SERVICES & SALES

TRAVEL GUIDES 
DISTRIBUTED

28,000 THROUGH
REST AREAS

189,000+
REFERRALS TO 

PARTNER WEBSITES

244,320

" I was able to fi nd a way 
to contact a representative 

quickly and easily. Once I did 
speak with a representative, I 

was able to get the information 
I needed. Thank you!”

“Wonderful having all my 
questions answered quickly and 

thoroughly without having to 
search and search and search.”

L IVE CHAT TRAVEL COUNSELING

North Dakota Guide Distribution
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ONLINE TRAVEL COUNSELORS HAVE
RESPONDED TO

890+
L IVE  CHATS WITH POTENTIAL  NORTH
DAKOTA V IS ITORS

In May of 2022, North Dakota Tourism 
launched a BOT to assist visitors. The BOT 
handled over 700 inquiries by potential 
visitors. The BOT was able to answer questions 
on campground, lodging, travel guide, 
attractions and events, Canadian border, trails 
and byways, outdoor recreation, and general 
North Dakota information.

FROM MAY TO DECEMBER OF 2022   
THE BOT HANDLED

700+
INQUIR IES BY POTENTIAL  V IS ITORS

Real comments 
from actual chat 

participants!



BUSINESS COMMUNIT Y
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The expanded work of North Dakota Tourism and its tourism and marketing staff focuses on brand building and the 
integration of visitation, relocation, talent attraction, Main Street, and economic development efforts. 

Research shows that North Dakota Tourism’s promotional campaigns create a “halo effect” beyond motivating travel. 
Ripple effects of advertising positively impact the state’s image as a place to live, work, start a business, attend 
college, purchase a home, and retire.

HALO EFFECT OF NORTH DAKOTA TOURISM MARKETING

12%
 LIFT

26%
 LIFT

18%
 LIFT

30%
 LIFT

18%
 LIFT

24%
 LIFT

16%
 LIFT

31%
 LIFT

8%
 LIFT

18%
 LIFT

16%
 LIFT

28%
 LIFT

Aware + VisitationAwareUnaware

Recommend
to friends/family

RetireInvest or
start a business

Relocate for
career

Raise a
family

Live

T O U R I S M  A D V E R T I S I N G  E L E V A T E S 
N O R T H  D A K O T A ’ S  I M A G E

Advertising is a powerful tool with the ability to change perceptions, attitudes 
and behaviors. Research shows that North Dakota Tourism’s promotional 

campaigns create a “halo effect” that lifts image and diversifi es the economy 
through increased visitation and makes North Dakota a more favorable place 
to visit, live, raise a family, work or advance your career, or invest or grow a 

business.



@TravelND

@NorthDakotaLegendary

Travel North Dakota

Travel North Dakota

@NorthDakota

A  LEGENDARY INDUSTRY AT A GL ANCE

1600 E Century Ave., Suite 6
Bismarck, ND 58502-2057
1-800-435-5663
www.NDtourism.com

JOBS SUPPORTED BY THE 
TRAVEL INDUSTRY

41,681
HOTEL ROOM NIGHTS SOLD

12.6% OCCUPANCY INCREASE

4,899,538
AIRPORT ARRIVALS
15.3% INCREASE

1,023,816

MILLION IN 
TRANSPORTATION

$521
MILLION IN

FOOD & BEVERAGE

$767
MILLION IN
LODGING

$384
MILLION IN

RECREATION

$374
MILLION IN

RETAIL

$565

CANADIAN BORDER CROSSINGS  
A 210.1% INCREASE

298,463
STATE AND NATIONAL PARK 

VISITORS  A 15.53% DECREASE

1,833,657

EST IMATED STATE & LOCAL TAX 
REVENUE  AN 8.6% INCREASE

$237.9 MILLION
IN V IS ITOR SPENDING

A 23.5% INCREASE OVER 2020

$2.61 BILLION
VIS ITORS IN 2021

A 19% INCREASE OVER 2020

21.71 MILLION

V I S I T O R  S P E N D I N G  B R I N G S  O U T S I D E  D O L L A R S  I N T O  N O R T H  D A K O TA ’ S  E C O N O M Y.

@TravelND

@NorthDakotaLegendary

Travel North Dakota

Travel North Dakota

@NorthDakota

*breakdowns in spending are from 2021
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